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Chairman’s Statement

ER|E

Dear Shareholders,

| present on behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) the
annual report of Sam Woo Construction Group Limited (the
“Company”) together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2023.

The construction industry has demonstrated signs of recovery
during the year, after running out of the bottom from the
last two years under the backdrop of COVID-19 epidemic.
Although the investments in the private sector continue to
be conservative due to worldwide economic uncertainties
and geo-political tensions, tenders in the public sector have
become active again as the Hong Kong government has made
commitments to increase public housing supply.

As mentioned in the latest Policy Address 2022, the Chief
Executive has moved ahead a few major development plans
to increase and speed up housing and land supply in quantity
and quality; to build up a third Central Business District; and
to develop Hong Kong into a new international innovation and
technology city. New development plans include the Northern
Metropolis, Kau Yi Chau Artificial Island and Tseung Kwan O
Area 137.

The Chief Executive also plans to take forward three major road
projects and three strategic railway projects, including Northern
Metropolis Highway, Shatin Bypass, Tseung Kwan O-Yau Tong
Tunnel, a new Central Rail Link, Hong Kong-Shenzhen Western
Rail Link and Tseung Kwun O Southern Line to bring about a
highly inter-connected and accessible road network and rail
system to support the future development of Hong Kong.

The government is proceeding with building a “Northern
Metropolis” in Yuen Long and North districts covering a total
land area of about 300 square kilometers. The entire project
is expected to take 20 years to complete. The new metropolis
accounts for more than one quarter of Hong Kong’s land area
and is expected to accommodate one-third of the population.
It will involve a multitude of new infrastructure projects, such
as transportation links, as well as residential and commercial
buildings. In addition, some 330,000 public housing units
will be built by 2032 to ease the long waiting time for public
housing. The government said that they have secured 350
hectares of land to meet the estimated public housing demand
for around 301,000 units in the coming 10-year period.
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The government’s public housing construction program has
been updated by the Housing Authority on an annual basis.
The number of flat units and locations of development are
specified. Besides, the 10-year Hospital Development Plan
and a series of other hospital development and improvement
projects are underway for the Hospital Authority to modernise
its services and meet the growing healthcare needs of the
community.

The directors of the Company support the government to
expedite the implementation of public works projects and
further hope that the government can grab the good timing
to expand the infrastructure investments for the future of
Hong Kong’s development. This is vital to the sustainability of
Hong Kong as a leading international city and to tap into the
opportunities arising from the development of innovation and
technology hub in the Greater Bay Area. To support the huge
demand of the construction market, we also hope that the
government can sort out solutions to mitigate the shortage of
labour and industrial land in a speedy manner.

Our establishment in Hong Kong for over 40 years with job
references both in iconic public infrastructure projects and the
private development sector, as well as the commitment of our
strong management team and dedicated staff to provide quality
work and services to our customers, built up the Group’s
reputation for its excellence in expertise and experience.
These have enabled us to withstand the ups and downs in the
market that we experienced the past few decades. The Board
remains prudently optimistic about the long term prospects
of the construction market. We are confident that the Group,
as one of the most dependable contractors in the foundation
segment with an extensive range of specialised machinery
and equipment will secure more projects and participate
instrumentally in landmark projects in the future.

| would like to take this opportunity to express my respect
for and appreciation to my fellow Board members,
the management team, all staff members, suppliers,
subcontractors and other business partners and, most
importantly, our shareholders and customers for their support.

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
Chairman
Hong Kong

23 June 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEERWED T

The Board hereby presents the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2023 (the “Year”/“20283”), together
with comparative figures from the previous year ended 31
March 2022 (the “Previous Year”/“2022”).

BUSINESS REVIEW
Group Revenue and Major Projects

The Group’s revenue for the Year increased 15% to HK$417
million (2022: HK$363 million) which was mainly contributed by
three construction projects, including Kai Tak Public Housing,
East Kowloon Public Housing and Kwun Tong Commercial
Building.

As at 31 March 2023
Completion status

R2023F3A31H

TR MR

Kai Tak Public Housing 20%

East Kowloon Public Housing Completed

RNBRERE BTk

Kwun Tong Commercial Building Completed

BEREAE BTk
Note: The above remaining contract values were determined with

reference to internal estimates based on currently available
information, and may be subsequently revised.

Kai Tak Public Housing
This project was awarded in about July 2022, with contract
value of approximately HK$970 million (including contingencies

and provisional sums), for bored pile, socketed H-piles and pile
cap works of a public housing development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

This project contributed to about 44% the Group’s revenue for
the Year.

East Kowloon Public Housing

This project was awarded in about April 2021 and was
completed during the Year. It was a contract for bored pile
works of a public housing development.

This project contributed to about 18% the Group’s revenue for
the Year.

Kwun Tong Commercial Building

This project was awarded in about November 2020 and was
completed during the Year. It was a contract for bored pile and
lateral support works of a proposed commercial building.

This project contributed to about 14% the Group’s revenue for
the Year.

Other projects

A few other projects contributed to about 24% of the Group’s
revenue for the Year.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The directors of the Company believe that the Hong Kong
Government is going to move in full steam on the development
plans mentioned in the Policy Address and huge opportunities
will be brought to the construction industry in the near future.
The Group foresees a better utilisation of equipment and labour
in the coming year on the ground that we already have a major
contract on hand and also bidding for new contracts available
in the market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEERWED T

Investment in a property holding company

In March 2017, the Group acquired 5% equity interest in
a property holding company, Gold Champion Enterprises
Limited (“Gold Champion”). The purpose is to provide a
springboard for the Group to explore opportunities in property
investment or property development. During the year, Gold
Champion has received enquiries from parties interested in
the land development or interested to acquire the land parcel.
Meanwhile, in view of the economic slowdown recently, Gold
Champion will be patient to see the further development in the
market.

FINANCIAL REVIEW AND ANALYSIS
Gross Profit and Margin

As disclosed in the last interim report of the Company for
the six months ended 30 September 2022 (the “First Half”),
the Group recorded contract revenue of HK$125 million and
a gross loss of HK$72 million for the First Half. The contract
income recognised in the First Half was not able to cover the
contract costs and overheads incurred in the same period
because (1) some contract customers had not yet certified
the value of construction works in response to the Group’s
application for interim payments; and (2) there were gap
periods between the completion of East Kowloon Public
Housing project and West Kowloon Cultural District project and
the commencement of Kai Tak Public Housing project in the
second quarter of the Year.

The above situation has improved in the second half of the
Year (the “Second Half”), the Group’s contract revenue
increased substantially in the Second Half, as compared with
the First Half. That was because (1) construction works of Kai
Tak Public Housing project have commenced and (2) some
contract customers have certified or have agreed to certify the
value of construction works undertaken in the previous periods.
Accordingly, gross profit generated in the Second Half enabled
the Group to set-off a significant part of the gross loss incurred
in the First Half. After all, the Group’s gross loss for the Year
narrowed down to HK$1 million (2022: HK$58 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Other Income

There was a significant increase in other income to HK$16
million for the Year (2022: HK$0.2 million) because the Group
received one-off other income in the aggregate amount
of HK$16 million. This included government grants from
Employment Support Scheme under Anti-Epidemic Fund
amounted to HK$5 million and the award of litigation costs
and statutory interest costs awarded by the Macau court in
the amount of HK$11 million, which was related to a civil
procedure filed by the Group in 2017 against a customer for
the payment of contract fees.

Finance costs, net

Net finance costs increased from HK$2 million in the Previous
Year to HK$7 million in the Year mainly because of the increase
in the amount of long-term borrowings and HIBOR interest
rate.

Reversal of provision for impairment of trade and retention
receivables, net

During the Year, the Group recovered certain retention
receivables on which full provision for impairment was made
in the year ended 31 March 2019. This included HK$10
million recovered from a Macau customer in the litigation
mentioned in the paragraph “Other Income” above and HK$15
million recovered from a customer of another Macau project
completed a few years ago.

On the other hand, the Group made an additional HK$18
million provision for impairment of trade and retention
receivables after the management performed specific
assessment on the recoverability of outstanding payments
in relation to each completed project. The management has
taken into account the most recent progress of negotiation
with those customers and the settlements received or expected
payment schedule obtained subsequent to the year end date in
making the assessment on the recoverability and adequacy of
provision.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEERWED T

After all, netting off the effect of HK$25 million provision written
back and HK$18 additional provision made as mentioned
above, the amount of reversal of impairment is about HK$7
million.

Net Profit

The Group recorded a net loss of HK$31 million for the
Year (2022: HK$101 million) mainly because of the gross
loss of HK$1 million (2022: HK$58 million) discussed above,
administrative expenses of HK$47 million which were relative
fixed in nature (2022: HK$44 million) and net finance costs of
HK$7 million (2022: HK$2 million), and mitigated by one-off
income, including other income of HK$16 million and the
reversal of impairment losses of HK$7 million mentioned above.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing

The Group’s financial position remains healthy, with current
ratio at 1.5 times (2022: 1.1 times) and total cash and bank
balance amounted to HK$197 million (2022: HK$128 million).
Net borrowings were HK$99 million (2022: zero) taken into
account the addition of a 2-year term loan of HK$100 million
advanced by a related company during the Year, while the net
gearing ratio was 20% (2022: zero).

Liquidity

The Group generally meets its working capital requirements
by cash flows generated from its operations and borrowings.
During the Year, the Group had a net cash outflow of HK$58
million used in operating activities (2022: HK$13 million).
Taken into account the cash balances together with bank
loans facilities available, the Group’s daily operations had been
financially sound throughout the Year.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s net current assets were
HK$128 million (2022: HK$26 million) and current ratio (current
assets divided by current liabilities) was 1.5 times (2022: 1.1
times).

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2023

4R E T - B ESCPT L E B O] B
25,000,0007% 7T M 7 # # 4%518,000,0007
T FE s WERR 4 %4 A7,000,000
BT o

il

RE B R A FE 815 % E 831,000,000
7 7T (20224 : 101,000,000 7T) * =
Z R LTt /) E 81,000,000% 7T
(20224 : 58,000,000/ Jt) - & ¥ &
7E VS H1T IR 52 47,000,0007% 7T (2022
£ : 44,000,000 7T) R KB R FE
7,000,0007 7T (20224 : 2,000,000 7T )
e WHE—XMRA (BIF ATl R
H fth U A 16,000,000 T KRB 5 1B 5 D
7,000,000/ 7T) M A AT % -

nBEE  MBERREERELEK

REEMT BN ERBE KB R
B .56 (202246 - 1.165) B EKE
I MR 1T 45 4 48 58 73197,000,000% 7T
(20224 : 128,000,000/ TT) ° & 7% 58
499,000,000/ JT (20224 : ZHE T) B
AA—HBEEARRAFEEEL —£8X
100,000,000 7T * BEIMF - MFAEE
L R B20% (20224 « &)

REBEE

AEEB-—RAELEZELENRE AR
EERNELEESFT R -RAFE
AEBLLEEHIANESREFRR
58,000,000/ 7T (20224 : 13,000,000
)  ERIBSERNBITEREE
% AEERANFENATLERFTITI

M2023%F3A31H  AEE®F RS
& E /128,000,000 5T (20224
26,000,000/ 7T) * Mimetb X (RREE
ERAREB A ETE) H1.5(5 (20224 :
1.11%) °



Management Discussion and Analysis

Cash and Bank Balances

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had total cash and bank
balances amounted to HK$197 million (2022: HK$128 million)
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Cash and bank
balances increased mainly because of a 2-year term loan
advanced by a related company during the Year.

Borrowings

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had total borrowings
of approximately HK$196 million (2022: HK$98 million)
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Borrowings generally
include short-term and long-term bank loans bearing floating
interest rates. Of the total borrowings, HK$94 million (2022:
HK$82 million) were for short-term bank loans and HK$52
million (2022: HK$8 million) were for the current portion of
long-term bank loans with maturity dates within 12 months.

Gearing Ratio and Total Equity

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had a net gearing (net
borrowings divided by total equity) of 20% (2022: net cash
position). For the purpose of calculating the Group’s net
gearing ratio, net borrowings refer to the total borrowings less
cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank balances.

The Group’s total equity as at 31 March 2023 was
approximately HK$500 million (2022: HK$532 million).

Capital Expenditures and Capital Commitments

The Group generally finances its capital expenditures by
internal resources, long-term bank loans and leases. During
the Year, the Group invested HK$32 million in machinery and
equipment (2022: HK$8 million). As at 31 March 2023, the
Group’s capital commitments relating to purchase of machinery
and equipment was nil (2022: HK$0.4 million). During the Year,
save as disclosed herein, the Group did not make any material
acquisitions or disposals of assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEERWED T

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had plant and equipment
of carrying amounts over HK$527 million in total, which
consisted of an extensive range of machinery and equipment
for foundation construction works. This fleet of plant and
equipment enables the Group to undertake both public and
private sector projects in order to generate revenue and profit
for the Group. The management considers that the fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use of these assets are
higher than their carrying amounts and therefore no impairment
provision is necessary.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2023, the net book amount of plant and
equipment HK$62 million (2022: HK$51 million) was pledged
for long-term bank loans. None of the banking facilities of the
Group were secured by the Group’s bank deposits (2022:
none).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2023, save for guarantees of performance
bonds relating to two foundation works and ancillary services
projects of the Group of approximately HK$7 million and
HK$29 million (2022: two projects of approximately HK$7
million and HK$7 million), the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities. The performance bonds are expected to
be released in accordance with the terms of the respective
construction contracts.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Operations of the Group are mainly conducted in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group’s revenue, expenses, cash and bank
balances, borrowings, other monetary assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Other than the
purchases paid in Euros and Singapore dollars, the Group was
not exposed to any significant foreign currency risk and had
not employed any financial instrument for hedging.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
EMPLOYEES

Customers

The Group emphasises its ability to deliver quality work on time
to customers and within the pre-determined project budget.
To execute the quality assurance policy of the Group, we
have maintained a quality management system which follows
the 1ISO 9001 standards. Quality assurance functions are
performed throughout the foundation works process from the
construction materials procurement stage to the completion
stage to ensure that the foundation works and ancillary
services meet the standards required by each customer. In
addition, members of our management team communicate
with our customers on a regular basis during the course of a
project to better understand and respond to our customers’
specific requirements. As our foundation business operates
on a non-recurring and project-by-project basis, we have not
entered into any long-term master contract with any of our
major customers. However, through this continued relationship
development, our Group aims to attract further business
from these customers and referrals from these customers.
Our directors consider that our Group has established good
relationship with our customers by delivering constructive
solutions and quality service to them.

Suppliers

We enter into contracts with our suppliers for construction
materials and subcontractors on a project-by-project basis
without a long term contract. Meanwhile, we maintain a
pre-approved list which admission is subject to assessment
of their background (including track record, pricing, market
reputation, timely delivery, financial conditions and after-sales
service) and the satisfactory quality of their construction materials,
and review and update the list from time to time. We also
acquired machinery and equipment from Asian and European
manufactures. We will check the product qualities and make
payments according to the contract terms. The directors consider
that we have maintained good business relationships with these
suppliers, subcontractors and manufacturers. During the year,
there was no material delay or dispute related to them causing
disruption to our operations. Some of them also have developed
good trading history of over years with our Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEERWED T

Employees

We believe that our employees are important assets to our
Group. Our directors recognise the importance of attracting
and retaining staff by providing a healthy and safe working
environment and job security. Our staff receive training to
enable them to acquire the prerequisite skills and knowledge
on health and safety related procedures before they are
assigned to carry out foundation works and ancillary services
on sites. Our Group also performs regular maintenance checks
on the machinery and equipment since our Group regards
regular maintenance as an important element to ensure safety
at the work sites. There was no fatal accidents happened in
the Group’s projects during the year and the accident rate was
lower than the industry average for the construction industry.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had 301 (2022: 246)
employees. The remuneration package we offer to our
employees includes salary, discretionary bonuses and
allowances. In general, we determine employee salaries based
on the individual’s qualifications, position and performance
(where applicable). We have designed an appraisal system to
assess the performance of our employees, which forms the
basis of our decisions with respect to salary raises, bonuses
and promotions. Our directors believe that the relationship
and co-operation between our management team and our
employees has been good.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

Qur Group also places an emphasis on environmental
protection when undertaking our foundation works and
ancillary services. Our Group’s activities are performed with
the utmost attention to quality, safety and with respect to the
environment. It is the policy of our Group to ensure that all
its activities are carried out in a manner that causes minimum
adverse impact on the environment through the establishment
and implementation of a management system which aims to
achieve environmental targets, comply with environmental
legislation and regulations, foster employees’ awareness
of their responsibilities for the environment; and review the
Group’s performance in respect of environmental matters and
strive to achieve continual improvement of its performance
and prevention of pollution. Trainings are provided to all staff
including the sub-contractor staff on the statutory and other
relevant requirements on environment and the implications of
not complying therewith.

In recognition of the policies and procedures undertaken by
our Group to address potential environmental issues with its
foundation works and ancillary services, in particular, large
diameter bored piles (with bell-out) and rock socketed steel
H-piles in pre-bored holes, our Group was awarded the
ISO 14001 (environment management system accreditation)
and renewed the certificate after passing the relevant audits
conducted by external certification body. Our Group also
implements an ISO 50001-based EnMS (energy management
system) that helps us to ascertain our current status of energy
use in order to devise corresponding measures to promote
efficient energy use in machinery and facilities and to formulate
a clear framework to promote continual improvement in energy
management and raise staff awareness on energy efficiency
and conservation. Our Group also monitors continuously on
the compliance with the customer’s environmental protection
requirements and relevant laws and regulations. During the
year, our Group had not been prosecuted by any governmental
authority for any purported breach of any applicable
environmental laws and regulations.
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TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance, and strives to maintain transparent
and responsible management practices that will create long
term value for the interests of shareholders. The Board will
continuously review and improve the Group’s corporate
governance practices, and maintaining a high standard of
business ethics across the organisation.

The Company had complied with all the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) under
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the year ended 31
March 2023.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry with all directors, the directors confirmed that
they had complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2023.

As required under the CG Code, the Board has established
guidelines no less exacting than the Model Code for relevant
employees in respect of their dealings in the securities of the
Company.

THE BOARD

The primary role of the Board is to protect and enhance
long term shareholders’ value. The Board oversees the
management, business, strategies and financial performance
of the Group. It also ensures that good corporate governance
policies and practices are implemented within the Group. In
the course of discharging its duties, the Board acts in good
faith, with due diligence and care, and in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. The management is
responsible for execution of the strategies in the Group’s daily
operations and implementation of the risk management and
internal control systems.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board currently comprises 7 members whose biographies
and family relations are set out in the “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” section on pages 29 to 32 in this annual
report. The posts of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are separately held by Mr. Lau Chun Ming and
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, respectively, to maintain an segregation
of duties between the Chairman’s responsibility to manage
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility to
manage the Group’s business and oversee the management.
The directors bring a good balance of skills and experience to
the Company. The independent non-executive directors serve
the relevant function of bringing independent judgment on the
development, performance and risk management of the Group.
The directors have been made fully aware of their collective
and individual responsibilities to shareholders.

The Company has in place effective mechanisms to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board.
Independent non-executive directors are well-represented on
the Board, accounted for about 43% of board seats and with
at least one with accounting or related financial management
expertise. Besides, the Chairman encourages open discussion
amongst directors, and solicits independent perspectives
from the independent non-executive directors in particular.
In addition, the Chairman has separate meeting at least once
every year with the independent non-executive directors
to ensure their voices are being heard effectively. All board
members also have access to the Company Secretary and
independent professional advice to assist them in performing
their duties to the Company, at the Company’s expense. The
Board has reviewed the implementation of such mechanisms
for the year ended 31 March 2023 and is of the view that they
have been effective.

The executive directors have entered into service contracts
with the Company and each of the independent non-executive
directors has been appointed on specific term of not more than
three years. Notwithstanding the specific term of appointments,
the articles of association of the Company provides that every
director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years. At each annual general
meeting, one-third of the directors for the time will retire from
office by rotation and being eligible for re-election by the
shareholders.
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Board meetings

The Board held four meetings during the year ended 31
March 2023, at approximately quarterly intervals. All directors
attended these meetings, at which business development,
investment strategies, financial performance and potential risks
relating to the daily operations of the Group, were discussed.
All important matters that are significant to the interest of the
Company’s shareholders are reserved by the Board for its
review and decision, including but not limited to the approval
of annual and interim results of the Group, dividend policy,
connected transactions and discloseable transactions that are
subject to announcement or reporting requirement pursuant to
the Listing Rules.

2

%
= o%

Ex¢

il<)S
mE}

HZE2023F3A3IHILFE EETEHE
THOREH  NWEFERT—R - 2BES
HELESSZ  TESETWESER -
WERE PHERAMEBAEBEHEE
BREERRE - IEEARABRERZM
EREANEZESHNAESSERIR
E o BIEATRAEREENFEMF
HEE  BRERE  ARBE EMRAA

NEFMERTOEER S RETH
BRG -

Meetings attended/held during the year ended 31 March 2023
REZ2023F3AN AL FEHHELESS CETEE

Board Committee Committee

Meeting
=g
=f
Executive Directors HTES

Mr. Lau Chun Ming R EE 4/4
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok BRBE 4/4
Mr. Lau Chun Ka BRREL 4/4
Ms. Leung Lai So ABELT 4/4

Independent Non-executive Directors BIEHTES
Professor Wong Sue-Cheun, Roderick TH2HR 4/4
Mr. Chu Tak Sum REREE 4/4
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold EXRBEE 4/4

Directors’ induction and development

In the year ended 31 March 2023, all directors complied
with the provision of the CG Code in relation to continuous
professional development and submitted their training records
to the Company. In doing so, the directors have undertaken
various forms of activities that have included attending a
presentations given by external professional advisors, and
reading materials relevant to the Company’s business,
directors’ duties and responsibilities.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established certain Board committees to
oversee specific aspects of the Company’s affairs and help
it in the execution of its responsibilities. These committees
each have specific written terms of reference which clearly
outline the committees’ authority and duties, and which
require the committees to report back on their decisions or
recommendations to the Board.

Audit Committee

The audit committee is responsible for the engagement of
external auditor, review of the Group’s financial information and
oversight of the Group’s financial reporting system, internal
control procedures and risk management system. It is made up
of three independent non-executive directors including Mr. Ip
Tin Chee, Arnold (chairman), Professor Wong Sue Cheun,
Roderick and Mr. Chu Tak Sum.

The audit committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 March 2023, which was attended by all of its members,
to review, among other matters, the consolidated financial
statements, risk register and internal control review report
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022, and have
a private meeting with external auditor without the presence
of the management; and the unaudited interim financial
information of the Group for the six months ended 30
September 2022.
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TEERRE

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee is responsible for annually
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board
(including its mix of skills, knowledge and experience), making
recommendations on proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or rei
appointment of directors, and assessing the independence
of independent non-executive directors. It also oversees
the implementation of the Company’s policy on diversity of
directors. It is made up of four members including Professor
Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick (chairman), Mr. Chu Tak Sum,
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold, being independent non-executive
directors, and Mr. Lau Chun Ming, an executive director.

The nomination committee held one meeting during the year
which was attended by all of its members. There was no
change in the board composition during the year. However,
the nomination committee has taken note of that the Company
will be required to appoint a new independent non-executive
director in the next annual general meeting if all the existing
independent non-executive directors have served on the
Board of the Company for more than 9 years pursuant to the
recently amended corporate governance code. Currently, the
independent non-executive directors of the Company have
served on Board for 8 years since the Company’s listing on
the main board in October 2014. The nomination committee
will follow the Company’s nomination and diversity policy
to prepare for the nomination and appointment of a new
independent non-executive director before the deadline for
fulfilling the compliance requirement as mentioned above.
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The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
The Company has a diversity policy of Board members. Under
this policy, the diversity of the Board is considered in terms
of factors such as gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments
are based on merit, and candidates are considered against
various objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates will be
based on a range of diversity perspectives appropriate to
the requirements of the Company’s business operations and
environment as well as the industry in which the Company
operates. The nomination committee will continuously monitor
and review the implementation of this policy and the progress
towards achieving the measurable objectives. In view of gender
diversity, the Company aims at maintaining at least 1 female
director in the Board.

The Board currently comprises 6 male and 1 female directors
and as such has achieved gender diversity in the Board.
The nomination committee considers that our directors have
extensive experience in different fields and professions that
are relevant to the Company’s business, which enable them to
provide valuable and relevant insights to the Board.

At the senior management level there were three male and
one female member. We will aspire to have more female
representation amongst our management team as part of
succession planning and to increase female representation
amongst our workforce. The gender ratio of the male and
female employees is 90% : 10% at as 31 March 2023. The
Group has in place a mechanism to support diversity across all
facets including but not limited to gender diversity. The Group
treats every employee equally, adheres to equal pay for equal
work and equal opportunities for different genders. However,
we are also mindful of the significant challenges in increasing
the female workforce as traditionally the construction market
in which we operate has a predominantly male workforce due
to the labour supply. We will continue to take opportunities to
increase the proportion of female staff, as and when suitable
candidates are identified.
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The nomination committee is responsible for the development
and implementation of the nomination policy which aims at
setting out the criteria and process in the nomination and
appointment of directors of the Company; ensuring that the
Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the Company; and ensuring the
Board continuity and appropriate leadership at Board level.

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship,
the following criteria should be considered: character and
integrity; qualifications; measurable objectives in achieving
Board diversity; independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules; potential contributions the candidate can bring to the
Board; time commitment; and such other perspectives that are
appropriate to the Company’s business and succession plan.

The nomination committee will conduct regular review on
the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
policy and where appropriate, make recommendations
on changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy and business needs. Upon receipt of the
proposal of appointment of new director and the biographical
information of the candidate, the nomination committee should
evaluate such candidate based on the objective criteria it has
set forth to determine whether such candidate is qualified
for directorship. For directors standing for re-election, the
nomination committee will review the contribution of the retiring
director and the level of participation and performance on the
Board.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of all the directors and senior
management of the Group and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration
policy for approval by the Board. It is made up of four members
including Mr. Chu Tak Sum (chairman), Professor Wong Sue
Cheun, Roderick, Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold, being independent
non-executive directors, and Mr. Lau Chun Ming, an executive
director.
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The remuneration committee held one meeting during the year
which was attended by all of its members. In determining the
remuneration of the Directors and the senior management,
the Remuneration Committee has considered factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and the senior management,
performance and contributions of the Directors and the senior
management and the change in market conditions. Details
of the remuneration paid to the directors and the other five
highest paid employees are set out in notes 31(a) and 7(c),
respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard
shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets, and
reviewing their effectiveness of annually through the audit
committee. The audit committee reports to the Board on any
material issues and makes recommendations to the Board.

The Group has maintained an operation manual, which
provides a comprehensive internal control guidance and
procedures on the Group’s operational cycles relating to
revenue, purchase and expenditure, inventory and human
resources etc., to ensure proper accounting records are
kept so that reliable financial reporting can be provided,
effectiveness and efficiency of operation can be achieved,
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and
safeguarding of assets can be maintained. These procedures,
together with the Company’s compliance manual, have also
shaped the control environment at which and how the Group
operates in, including the budgeting controls, investment
decision making, risk assessment and practices of corporate
governance. These systems are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance and protection against
errors, losses and fraud.

The Company does not establish a standalone internal audit
department, however, the Board has put in place adequate
measures to perform the internal audit function at different
aspects of the Group which are discussed below.
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The Company has appointed an internal control adviser to
conduct annual review on the risk management and internal
control system of the Group for the year and reported their
findings and recommendations to the audit committee and the
Board. It is designed to review the effectiveness of the Group’s
material internal controls so as to provide assurance that key
internal control measures are carried out appropriately and are
functioning as intended. During the year, risk assessment and
management, fraud and error reporting, revenue recognition
cycle, lease and tenancy cycle and investment cycle were
reviewed and found that adequate controls are in place.

For the foundation works business, the Group has to comply
respective requirements and pass the regular reviews in order
to retain its listing in the Development Bureau Specialist List
(Group 1l) in large diameter bored pile (with bell-out), the
Housing Authority List of Piling Contractors (large diameter
bored piling category) Probation and the Buildings Department
Registered Specialist Contractor — Foundation Category.
The Group has also implemented a management system in
accordance with the requirements under ISO 9001, ISO 14001,
ISO 45001 and ISO 50001 to ensure that the Group’s services
meet the requisite health and safety, quality and environmental
requirements. During the year, the Group passed the audits
conducted by external consultants and renewed these
certificates. Upon completion of pile construction, the Group is
required to engage external professionals to conduct various
applicable tests on all piles based on the relevant contractual
requirements and ensure full compliance with customer
requirements. Subject to these piling records available to the
customers for their testing and inspection, the authorised
persons employed by the customers certify the value of the
works completed in the payment certificates issued to the
Group. Therefore, stringent on-going controls and monitoring
systems have already been embedded in the daily operations
of the foundation works business.
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The executive directors held monthly meetings with senior
management to review and monitor the business and financial
performance against the targets, the progress of certification
and contract receipts from the customers, the efficiency
in the use of the Group’s resources in comparison to the
budgets, and the operational matters to ensure the Group has
complied with the regulations that have material impact to the
Group’s business. The aim is to enhance the communication
and accountability of the directors and management so that
significant strategic, financial, operational and compliance
risks or potential deviations are timely identified and dealt
with in a proper manner, while significant issues are reported
back to the Board for their attention. The Company also
compiles monthly reports to the Board (including independent
non-executive directors) to update the latest financial
performance, position and prospects of the Group.

The Company also has a policy for disclosure of inside
information. While any potential inside information will be
escalated to the executive meetings or the Board via the
established reporting channels, the directors will assess and
determine if inside information of the Company exists where
timely disclosure is required to be made by an announcement
published on the Stock Exchange website. On the other hand,
in order to enhance the communication with the market, the
Company will publish voluntary announcements to update
the public on the latest development of the Group’s business
to enhance the transparency of the Company, whenever
practicable.

The Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control system at its Board
meeting on 23 June 2023, including its financial, operational
and compliance controls, and its risk management functions.
The Audit Committee’s review included a consideration of
the internal control evaluations conducted by the executive
management, the findings of the external auditors during the
annual audit and the internal control review reported by an
internal control adviser engaged by the Company. There was
no material fraud or errors came to the attention of the Board
from all these sources. Therefore, the Board was satisfied
that the risk management and internal control systems were
adequate and implemented effectively during the year without
significant weakness identified.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Total auditors’ remuneration for year ended 31 March 2023
in relation to statutory audit work of the Group amounted
to HK$1.6 million (2022: HK$1.6 million), of which a sum
of HK$1.3 million (2022: HK$1.3 million) is paid or payable
to PricewaterhouseCoopers, independent auditor of the
Company, in respect of the audit services related to the audit
for the year ended 31 March 2023. No fees were paid for
non-audit services to the independent auditor during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of financial statements which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing
the financial statements which give a true and fair view, it is
fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently. The reporting responsibilities of
the Company’s external auditor on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 43 to 57 of this annual report. The
directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company’s company secretary Mr. Chan Sun Kwong
coordinates the supply of information to the directors and is
the primary contact person within the Company for all matters
relating to the duties and responsibilities of the company
secretary. All directors have access to the company secretary
to ensure that board procedures and all applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed. During the year, he had taken no
less than 15 hours relevant professional training as required
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Please refer to his
biographical details which are set out on page 32 of this annual
report.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

We endeavour to ensure that shareholders are treated fairly
and are able to exercise their shareholders’ rights effectively.
Shareholders are entitled by the articles of association of
the Company and are also encouraged to participate in the
Company’s general meetings or appoint proxies to attend
and vote. Shareholder(s) holding not less than 10% of the
Company’s paid-up capital may request the Board to convene
an extraordinary general meeting and put forward proposals.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary for the such purpose and specify the
transaction of any business to propose in such meeting.

If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person for election as
director in a general meeting, the particulars of the candidate
must be stated in a nomination notice signed and deposited
together with a notice of willingness signed by the candidate
to the company secretary at the Company’s headquarters or
at the Registration Office (Tricor Investor Services Ltd., 17/F,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong) of the
Company. The notice should be given at least seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting.

The Company has made amendments to its memorandum
and articles of association during the year to conform with
the Core Shareholder Protection Standards and to keep up
with technological developments and provide flexibility to
the Company in relation to the conduct of general meeting
through electronic means. The second amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association of the Company was
approved and adopted by a special resolution passed at the
annual general meeting held on 9 September 2022.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

We are committed to maintaining effective and timely
dissemination of the Group’s information to its shareholders
and the market. We have established a shareholders’
communication policy which emphasises the importance of
regular communication to the shareholders and the market
and sets out various communication channels to ensure they
have the available information reasonably required to make
informed assessments of the Group’s strategy, operations
and financial performance. The annual shareholders’ meetings
and other shareholders’ meetings of the Company are the
primary forum for communication by the Company with its
shareholders in which the shareholders are able to have an
open dialogue with the Board. In addition, the Company’s
website (www.samwoo-group.com) contains extensive
company information which is easily accessible. Shareholders
are also provided with contact details of the Company, such
as telephone number, email address and postal address,
to enable them to make any queries or comments on the
Company at any time.

The Company has reviewed the implementation of its
shareholders’ communication policy and considered it was
implemented effectively during the year by maintaining an
on-going dialogue with shareholders, and the publication of
annual and interim reports, announcements and circulars
so as to provide extensive information on the Group’s
activities, business strategies and developments, and financial
position, as well as by making available all the corporate
communications published to the Stock Exchange’'s website
and the Company’s website.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio. The Board considers a number of factors in
declaration and payment of dividends, including the financial
condition, results of operation and level of cash; statutory
and regulatory restrictions; future prospects and any other
factors that the Board may consider relevant. The Board
has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends to the
shareholders of the Company to the extent that the Company
shall maintain adequate cash reserve for meeting its working
capital requirements and future growth.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Chun Ming, aged 80, is an executive director, the
Chairman and founder of the Group. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries within the Group. Mr. Lau is responsible
for the overall strategic planning and business development
of the Group, overseeing the tendering and quotation
process, research and development and formulation of overall
corporate policies of the Group. Mr. Lau has been involved
in the foundation works business since 1990. He is a brother
of Mr. Lau Chun Kwok and Mr. Lau Chun Ka, the spouse of
Ms. Leung Lai So and the father of Ms. Lau Pui Shan.

Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, aged 71, is the chief executive officer
and an executive director. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries within the Group. He joined the Group in the
1970s. He is responsible for the overall management of
foundation works and ancillary services projects of the Group.
He has been involved in the foundation works business since
1990. He is the brother of Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Mr. Lau
Chun Ka, brother-in-law of Ms. Leung Lai So and uncle of
Ms. Lau Pui Shan.

Mr. Lau Chun Ka, aged 69, is an executive director. He
is also a director of various subsidiaries within the Group.
He joined the Group in the 1970s. He is responsible for the
overall management of maintenance and repair of machinery
and equipment of the Group. He has been involved in the
foundation works business since 1990. He is the brother of
Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, brother-in-law of
Ms. Leung Lai So and uncle of Ms. Lau Pui Shan.

Ms. Leung Lai So, aged 76, is an executive director. She
is also a director of various subsidiaries within the Group.
She joined the Group in the 1970s. She is responsible for
the administrative and human resources management of
the Group. She obtained a diploma in smaller company
management from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in
July 1997. She is the spouse of Mr. Lau Chun Ming, mother of
Ms. Lau Pui Shan and sister-in-law of Mr. Lau Chun Kwok and
Mr. Lau Chun Ka.
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BEENSHNEEERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick, aged 78, was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in September 2014. Professor Wong holds a
bachelor’'s degree of arts from San Diego State College in
the United States of America, and a doctoral’s degree in
mathematics from the University of Alberta in Canada. He is
a Fellow of the Royal Society of Canada, and Chevalier dans
I’Ordre National de la Légion d’Honneur of France, and elected
as a member of the European Academy of Sciences. Professor
Wong is currently an independent non-executive director of
BExcellent Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1775) and
G&M Holdings Limited (stock code: 6038), which shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chu Tak Sum, aged 75, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
September 2014. Mr. Chu is a registered architect in Hong
Kong under the provisions of the Architects Registration
Ordinance (Cap. 408 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and has been
engaged as an architect for about 45 years. Mr. Chu obtained
a bachelor’'s degree of arts in architecture studies from The
University of Hong Kong in 1971. He is also a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Architects and holds Class
1 Registered Architect qualification of the PRC. Mr. Chu is
currently the managing director of T.S. Chu Architects Limited.

Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold, aged 60, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
September 2014. Mr. Ip obtained a Master of Arts degree
from Trinity College, Cambridge University. Mr. Ip is chairman
of Altus Holdings Limited (stock code: 8149), which group
companies focus on providing corporate finance services
to listed and unlisted companies in Hong Kong, as well as
property investments.
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Mr. lp is an independent non-executive director of Pioneer
Global Group Limited (stock code: 224) and SV Vision Limited
(formerly known as Icicle Group Holdings Limited) (stock
code: 8429), each of which is a company listed on the Stock
Exchange. He was also an independent non-executive director
of Pak Fah Yeow International Limited (stock code: 239) until
30 September 2022. Mr. Ip worked for Standard Chartered
Asia Limited and was a director of Yuanta Securities (Hong
Kong) Limited thereafter until January 2001, specializing
in a range of corporate finance and advisory activities for
companies based in Hong Kong and China. From 1984
to 1988, he worked at Arthur Andersen & Co in London
specializing in taxation and qualified as a Chartered Accountant
in 1988.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wu Kwai Keung, Peter, aged 68, is the Deputy General
Manager of the foundation division. He is responsible for the
business development, tendering and overall management
of the foundation works and ancillary services projects of the
Group. He obtained a master degree in arbitration & dispute
resolution from City University of Hong Kong in 2003. He has
more than 35 years of experience in the construction industry
both locally and abroad. He is a member of the Institution of
Civil Engineers and Hong Kong Institution of Engineers.

Mr. Ho Ting Leung, Robin, aged 67, is the Deputy General
Manager of the foundation division. He is responsible for the
managing, supervising and actuating the current projects of
the Group. He has over 35 years of experience, working in
the construction industry, since graduated in 1981 from Civil
Engineering Department of Hong Kong Polytechnic.
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BEENSHNEEERE

Mr. Kwok Kan Kuen, Lawrence, aged 59, is a project
manager of the foundation division. He is responsible for the
supervision of the related foundation projects of the Group.
Prior to joining the Group in July 2012, he has over 20 years of
experience in the engineering field. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in civil engineering from the Chu Hai College in 1987
and a master’s degree of science in international construction
management and engineering from the University of Leeds
in the United Kingdom in 1994. He is currently a registered
professional engineer under the Engineer Registration
Ordinance (Cap. 409 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and a
member of each of the Institution of Civil Engineers of the
United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers,
respectively.

Ms. Lau Pui Shan, aged 49, is the chief financial officer of the
Group and a director of certain subsidiaries within the Group.
She joined the Group in September 1999. She is responsible
for financial accounting, treasury and banking matters,
investors relation and information technology system of the
Group. She obtained a bachelor’'s degree of commerce in
accounting and finance and a master’s degree of commerce in
international business from the University of New South Wales
in Australia. She is a fellow certified practicing accountant of
CPA Australia and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. She is the daughter of Mr. Lau
Chun Ming and Ms. Leung Lai So.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Sun Kwong, aged 56, is the company secretary
of the Company. He obtained a diploma of business
administration from the Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now
known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University) in 1990. He is
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute, the Chartered Governance Institute in the United
Kingdom, the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in the United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is an accredited mediator of The
Hong Kong Mediation Centre. He has over 30 years company
secretarial experience.
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The directors of the Company submit their report together
with the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in the provision of foundation
works and ancillary services. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements. The segment information of
the operations of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023
is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review and principal risks of the Group for
the year are included in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis in this annual report.

The environmental policies and relationships with key
stakeholders are included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis in this annual report. Further details of the above are
included in the Environment, Social and Governance Report in
this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

on page 58 of this annual report.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the published results and of the assets and

liabilities of the Group for the last five years is set out on page
156 of this annual report.
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DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to about HK$14,000.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2023,
calculated under the Companies Act, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman Islands, amounted
to HK$199 million (2022: HK$200 million).

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

No shares were issued in the years ended 31 March 2023
and 2022. Details of share capital are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and there was no restriction
against such rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro
rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 March 2023.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted pursuant
to a shareholders’ written resolution of the Company passed
on 15 September 2014. No options have been granted,
exercised or cancelled under the Scheme since its adoption up
to the date of this annual report.
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The purpose of the Scheme is to attract and retain personnels
to remain with the Group and to motivate them to optimise
their performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group by
providing them with the opportunity to acquire equity interests
in the Company. The Board may, at its discretion, grant
options pursuant to the Scheme to the directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors), the directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries and employees of the Group and any other
persons (including consultants or advisers) whom the Board
considers, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group.

Total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to the Scheme and any other share options schemes
of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the shares in issue
on the Company’s listing date, i.e. 16 October 2014, being
40,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each on the listing date
(or equivalent to 160,000,000 shares of HK$0.0025 each
subsequent to share subdivision effective on 23 December
2015) (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”). The Company may
renew the Scheme Mandate Limit with shareholders’ approval
provided that each such renewal must not exceed 10% of
the shares in the Company in issue as at the date of the
shareholders’ approval.

The maximum number of shares underlying all outstanding
options which have been granted and have yet to be exercised
pursuant to the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in the
manner as set out in the Scheme, the maximum number
of shares underlying the options granted to each eligible
participant (including both exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1.0% of the shares in issue for the time being.

The period during which an option may be exercised by
a grantee (the “Option Period”) shall be the period to be
determined and notified by the Board to the grantee at the time
of making an offer, which shall not expire later than 10 years
from the offer date.
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Subject to any restrictions applicable under the Listing Rules, an
option may be exercised in whole or in part by the grantee at any
time during the Option Period in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme and the terms on which the option was granted.

The grantee shall pay HK$1.00 upon acceptance of an offer of
an option.

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board but in any
event shall not be less than the highest of: (a) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the offer date, which must be a trading day;
(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five trading
days immediately preceding the offer date; or (c) the nominal value
of the shares on the offer date of the relevant option.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years after
the date of adoption.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Lau Chun Ming (Chairman)

Mr. Lau Chun Kwok (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lau Chun Ka

Ms. Leung Lai So

Independent non-executive directors

Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick
Mr. Chu Tak Sum
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold

In accordance with article 84 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, Ms. Leung Lai So and
Mr. Chu Tak Sum will retire and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered all of the independent non-executive
directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
any member of the Group which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’/CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE GROUP’S
BUSINESS

Save for disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no
transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company’s
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent companies was a
party and in which a director or controlling shareholders of the
Company and the directors’ connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management
are set out on pages 29 to 32.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of
directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO, or as notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, are as follows:

(@) Directors’ interest in the Company:

Number of ordinary shares
of HK$0.0025 each held (long position)
FisEREE.0025ETHEEREE (H8)

Name of director

Esps

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
el

1,200,000,000

Ms. Leung Lai So 1,200,000,000

REHLL

(b) Directors’ interest in associated corporations of the
Company:

Name of associated

Name of director  corporation Number of shares
EEpg HEEEER ROEE

Mr. Lau Chun Ming  Actiease Assets Limited 61 shares

BREAE £ 61

Mr. Lau Chun Ming  Silver Bright Holdings Limited 10,000 shares

BRALE 10,0008
Mr. Lau Chun Ming ~ SWAA Holdings Limited 1 share
BIRALE 1R

Ms. Leung Lai So Actiease Assets Limited 61 shares
REHLL 61

Ms. Leung Lai So Silver Bright Holdings Limited 10,000 shares

PBELL 10,000/%
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(@) EERAATMENS

Percentage of
shareholding Capacity
BERESL EL)

71.43% Founder of a discretionary trust
2REEREIHA

71.43% Beneficiary of a
discretionary trust
PREERNZEA

(o) BEFRARREEAE/E

Percentage of

shareholding Capacity

ERESL &4

100% Founder of a discretionary trust
PREFMERA

100% Founder of a discretionary trust

ERETNARA

100% Founder of a discretionary trust
PREFEMEHA

100% Beneficiary of a
discretionary trust
PRETHEHEA

100% Beneficiary of a
discretionary trust
2EERNIEA



So far as the directors are aware, as at 31 March 2023, the
interest and short positions of the persons, other than a director
or chief executive of the Company, in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 336 of the SFO are as follows:

(c)  Substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions in
the Company:

Number of ordinary shares of

Name of shareholder HK$0.0025 each held
Fr#8 R E{E0.002558 T Y

BRREHE EBREA

Actiease Assets Limited Long position 1,200,000,000

#¥%£1,200,000,000/%

Silver Bright Holdings Limited Long position 1,200,000,000
#¥%£1,200,000,0000%

SW AA Holdings Limited Long position 1,200,000,000

#F 7 1,200,000,0008%

Notes:

1. 1,200,000,000 shares were held by Actiease Assets
Limited, a company wholly owned by Silver Bright Holdings
Limited which is indirectly owned by a discretionary trust of
which Ms. Leung Lai So is the beneficiary.

2. Silver Bright Holdings Limited is 100% held by SW AA
Holdings Limited as trustee of a discretionary trust set up
by Mr. Lau Chun Ming.
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Percentage of
shareholding Capacity

BRESL g4

71.43% Beneficial owner

BESBEEA

71.43% Interest of a controlled
corporation

REH)EEER

71.43% Trustee
ZEEA

1. 1,200,000,0000% A% 1 fSilver
Bright Holdings Limited® &
B M) A AlActiease Assets
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Holdings Limited /3 & % & A A3
BHLLTWEEETEERS -

2. Silver Bright Holdings Limited i
BIRARSE AR B REEFTHR
5 ASW AA Holdings LimitedFfr
100%%5 A °

2023FFH | ZHNEEEEERAA

39



40

Directors' Report

EEEWRE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The controlling shareholders have confirmed to the Company
of their compliance with the non-competition undertakings
provided to the Company under a deed of non-competition
dated 15 September 2014.

In addition, the Company requested and obtained the
information of the companies owned by the controlling
shareholders of the Company. The independent non-executive
directors, based on their review of the confirmation, noted that
no engagement in competing business had been reported by
the controlling shareholder of the Company during the year
ended 31 March 2023; and there was no particular situation
rendering the full compliance of the undertakings being
questionable.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s five largest customers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 96% (2022: 96%) of
the Group’s total turnover. The largest customer accounted for
approximately 61% (2022: 43%) of the Group’s total turnover.

During the year, the Group’s five largest suppliers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 62% (2022: 56%) of
the Group’s total purchases. The largest supplier accounted
for approximately 16% (2022: 16%) of the Group’s total
purchases.

To the best of the knowledge of the directors, none of the
directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in these major
suppliers or customers.
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LOAN AGREEMENT WITH COVENANTS RELATING TO
SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

On 26 September 2022, the Group entered into a bank facility
letter for a term of two years in the aggregate amount of
HK$100,000,000 for working capital purpose. Pursuant to this
facility letter, the Company undertakes to the bank that Mr. Lau
Chun Ming shall remain as chairman of the Board; and Mr. Lau
Chun Ming or Ms. Leung Lai So shall maintain, directly or
indirectly, not less than 55% legal and beneficial ownership of
the issued share capital of the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the year set out in note 28 to the financial
statements included transactions that constitute connected/
continuing connected transactions for which the disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules have been complied with.

MARKET CAPITALISATION

As at 31 March 20283, the market capitalisation of the listed
securities of the Company was approximately HK$111 million
based on the total number of 1,680,000,000 issued shares of
the Company and the closing price of HK$0.066 per share.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 March 2023 and as at the date of
this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
During the year and up to the date of this report, the Group

had complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the
places where we operate in all material respects.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION BEFRBEEX

The Company’s Articles provides that every director is entitled RRARAEBERMBARE - st EEHAK
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against R0 77 BB A% 1T oJ B 28 Bsk 35 A B 1t 4R
all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or ZHERKLSET  BNESERYLAD
about the execution of duties of his/her office or otherwise in REETRESEE HHSEEAG ZHEF
relation thereto provided that such indemnity shall not extend S THESEEEBEGRI -

to any matter in respect of fraud or dishonesty which may

attach to the director.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability ARABRFAEBERBEE2FNESRE

insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate TRE  AESREEEORE-
cover for the directors.

AUDITOR ZEER

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 HZE2023F3A31B It FENGEA MR

March 2023 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, ROBESFUKBETAESMER  H
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for BRAARRREERERAF RS EERER
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of WEEESERE -

the Company.

On behalf of the Board REESZZ

Mr. Lau Chun Ming BlIREA K £

Chairman *E

Hong Kong, 23 June 2023 &% 2023%F6H23H
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION
GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Sam Woo
Construction Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages 58 to
155, comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2023;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matters identified in our audit are
summarised as follows:

o Accounting for construction contracts

° Estimated useful lives and residual values of
machinery and equipment

Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

Accounting for construction contracts

Refer to note 2.17 in the summary of significant
accounting policies, note 4(a) in the critical
accounting estimates and judgements and
note 5 and note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

B2 AMBRRERNGTERBEEMT2.17
BEGE A RAEE4(a) A KM ST FET o

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
recognised revenue amounted to HK$416,854,000
from construction works, with the related
construction contracts costs amounted to
HK$360,273,000.

#H E£202343AHA31HIEEFE - E5B®ER
416,854,000 TR A TI R BIZETE - AR
45 KK 7R /360,273,000 7T ©

MRETEEE)

BPEEPRAINERETERBANT

s HESHMNERREE

s HMRMERBHEAAUERAFHERSRER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ESOAEERRETSE

Our procedures in relation to management’s
accounting for measuring the progress towards
satisfaction of the performance obligation, revenue,
cost and profit recognition of construction contracts
mainly included:

HREBEBEHAERITRABZHNEES EELNNHEK
A AR N RN G RIE - RME KRN EF+
B

= We inspected material construction contracts
of the Group and agreed contract sum and
variations, if any, to management’s records.

= HAERRE BESEENERBRESHNAKRERE
EHRNESNCELEE (W) -

- We assessed and tested the key controls over
project management and the project costs
budgetary process and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and level of
other inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.

= BAETHRAFHER EE RIARKATEREBIE
PR EEEE  WHEBERMGATHERERE
EARREE (MERE 8T ZEFHRH
ERER LMK KFFEERER
PRt ) (B A & B e

2023F F3R | ZMEE



ndependent Auditor’s Repor
B BT E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BRETEE(E)

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRETEE BMWESNTEEERETSE

Revenue on construction contracts is recognised - We selected, on a sample basis, cost
over the period of individual contract by measuring component within management’s budget,
the progress towards complete satisfaction of such as costs of materials, subcontracting
individual performance obligation. Generally, the fees, labour costs, overhead costs, etc. We
Group recognises revenue using either input compared the budgeted cost components to
method or output method, with the selection supporting documents including but not limited
of method dependent upon which method best to price quotation and rate of labour costs.
depicts the way the Group satisfies its performance - BMMEELERESMENAE  2BREA - &
obligation over time. The decision as to which B - MEBREXANAXITHEE - H M
method to use is made for each contract after HTEE K AR AR ES D BIEE S GRS -
considering the nature of the goods or services that FEEBEETRARESREBEERAER -

the Group promised to transfer to the customer.
BESHNBABBTEER 2 BITEAIBOES
FEETEEREHNMATURR - —Rims © E&
ERARA LS H AR - FIEREBIURR
MBI Lk xEHL SREESRERBITRAER
AR c HESHOTRAMNEREZRLERE B5E
FAERAETEPOHEMIRBIMEBERIRTE -




KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BARENSEE

Under input method, revenue on construction
contracts is recognised with reference to actual
costs incurred by the Group up to the end of the
reporting period as a percentage of total estimated
costs for each contract. Under output method,
revenue recognition is based on the stage of
completion of contract activity by reference to work
performed at balance sheet date as a percentage
of the total contract value.

BERANE BEAGAONKARZEEZREHN
N BEEEEREANKINEEESHMERAERE
WEDLLMER - BRB&H L - WABREERLE
PELGHMETIREREHNBEER S LRES
REBH T IR -

Recognition of revenue, cost and profit on
contracts requires significant judgement and
estimates in (a) measuring the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation; (b) estimating total budgeted costs
and profit margin for each projects; and (c)
estimating the expected recovery of costs arising
from variation of work scope during the contracts
periods. We focused on this area as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the revenue and
the related costs to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements and the significance of the
judgement and estimates involved.

BHBWA -~ ARG MERTZH (@I 2EH T
ERITRAORBHONER )T S HENBEERA
BERNEE: ROEAEHNHEEIESHEBEE
B £ R AR BE 75 B Ui 1F i B K B R fl 5t - R
WARBEXAE BEXEGEMBERENEEZMN
ARE TR HEREANERE - RFABELES
BRESAFEM BTN USRS -

MRBEITEEE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ETNAEERRENSE

- We tested, on sample basis, actual costs
incurred to supporting documents including, but
no limited to, suppliers’ invoices and labour cost

and overhead costs allocation schedules.
- BB RBAEE XM (B 1B 7R 7 4 e 7 | 3
MBI AMEEBRDER) HEEENE
BREK AN EfT R BORIR o

- We discussed with project managers and

compared the actual costs incurred against the
latest budgeted costs, to understand the status
of the project completion and, identify whether
there are any cost overruns, potential onerous
contract or variation of work scope. Where
applicable, we checked these changes from the

original work scope to supporting documents.
- B BRIE B 18 i RS B S e B R A AN Bl
R ATEEETLLR  UTHEE R IR
BERSFEEMANES  BEEIBEEHXT
EHRMNEE - LEANER  BHgREHR
AT SRS 2 & F e XX o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BRETEE(E)
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRETSE BMNEANNEERRESNSE

We checked the completion status specified in
quantity surveyors’ certificates and compared
the status/amount with revenue recognisd for
contracts where revenue was recognised using
output method.

BAE A EERERRAN N IRE TEAE
FEREFRTAMNTIARRLE AR, £58
BB BARWAELR -

We assessed the competence and
independence of external quantity surveyors
involved in selected contracts.
BMFTE2EMEL ZSONINETRHAEM 2
CERARDSE VA R

Based on the procedures performed, we considered
that management’s accounting of construction
contracts were supportable by the evidence obtained.
ERBBERFNAER BMARREERBHRESONE
ATRBEERERE R




KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BRETEE(E)

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BREESSR BMNET N NEEHRRENSE

Estimated useful lives and residual values of W& RENMETAERESREREE
machinery and equipment

Refer to note 2.5 in the summary of significant  Our procedures in relation to management’s estimated
accounting policies, note 4(b) in the critical useful lives and residual values of machinery and
accounting estimates and judgements and note 14  equipment mainly included:

to the consolidated financial statements. HEEBEHEMEREN G AIERAFHARFRER -
F2HEEMBRREAGTREMENT2S & RMEERNNEFEERE:

E A E R A BT T4 (o)A KRBT aE14 -

- We understood and assessed the internal

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying value controls over the valuation of machinery and
of machinery and equipment amounted to equipment and assessed the inherent risk
HK$524,932,000, with depreciation charge for of material misstatement by considering the
the year ended 31 March 2023 amounted to degree of estimation uncertainty and level of
HK$25,245,000. other inherent risk factors such as complexity,
M2023F3H31H MM EXREZEEHMER subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
524,932,000 7T M & 2202343 31 H L F[E 23T management bias or fraud.

£ i 525,245,000/ 7T ° - B TR R R B E A BB

WiEBE B G THRERE REMESRERA
E(WEMEE T8N EHREEEERIK
HEF RO SURNE ) KT RE A E R HE R Rt 0 B A &L
B o

- We discussed with the management on the
recent market development that might impact
the prevailing market values for equivalent
aged assets for each category of machinery
and equipment and the value of scrap metal
at year end. We performed independent
research to corroborate with the management’s
assessment.

= BMEREIRE i B AR & 8 = M & %
HBHRSRREENRITTHEERFREHE
BERTZENTISER - RS ETBELHTIA
EEEBREMNNML -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

Management estimates useful lives of machinery
and equipment annually by reference to
the industry practice, expected repair and
maintenance, and if there is any technical or
commercial obsolescence arising from changes or
improvements in the market. Residual values of the
machinery and equipment are determined based on
prevailing market values for equivalent aged assets
taking into account the condition of the relevant
assets or the value of scrap metal. Depreciation
expense would be significantly affected by the
useful lives and residual values of the machinery
and equipment as estimated by management.
EREGFR2ETEEN BHAEECRREE UK
TR ABEMETSE SNSRI RN EES
EBE - HET M R RE R ERFH - M ER
HORRBEDREERASERREENRITMEE
E Wt REBEENRAKEHNEE ERE
Tl 5 4 4 B SR A 0 A {68 A F A R RUBR B E S BT 3T
EERAEATE -

MREFER(E)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWESNTEEERETSE

We sample checked market quotations
and recent scrap metal price to assess
whether the residual value of each type of
machinery and equipment is within reasonable
range and challenged the judgement and
estimates involved in the assessment with the
management.

P9 B AR T 35 B SRR B A 3 A (B AR DAY
HEBERBRERRENRREERTEAEHE -
Wt &P PSR ey 2 R et R E R ER L E
EE o

We also compared, on a sample basis, the
key specifications, including the model, year
of manufacture, equipment and modifications
of the comparable machinery and equipment
with those owned by the Group to assess the
suitability of the comparison.

BTG E ERIE (BIERIE LB &R E 8
Bt REFH  RERZEBRL)E EEH
FREER RO M R TR E - U R
hREEHEM -

We reviewed the sensitivity analysis performed
by management on financial impact of
fluctuation on residual values and estimated

useful lives to depreciation.
BMEEHEREEARNMEERIETAIERAS
HRBHNENN B BETHERMEDN -




KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

We considered this to be a key audit matter due
to the fact that the carrying value of machinery
and equipment represented 91% of non-current
assets and 54% of total assets of the Group as
at 31 March 2023, and significant judgements
and assumptions are involved in determining the
useful lives and residual values of machinery and
equipment.

BN N2023F3ABI B MR REBOKREEN |
EEERBEENIN N RBEENSI%  AREE
EHMERENRAIERFHARFNREERSIREE
AT RRER - BRI RERETFE -

MRBEITEEE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNET N NEEHRRENSE

= We assessed useful lives by benchmarking to
other industry players and performing research
to consider whether there are changes or
improvements in the market which could
potentially result in technical or commercial
obsolescence.

- HPIAE MR P EEF A EAFHLE
THRNZBRE A M5B LR E Al e E
Ao sk 7 3R 77 E B o

- We tested, on a sample basis, whether
additions to machinery and equipment have
been recorded in proper categories with
relevant useful lives and residual values, for the
calculation of depreciation.

- HEAEFEMS - HAFIE HEOR M R 8
NERR N A @R AT B & B R R E
B8R -

Based on the procedures performed, we considered
that management’s judgements and assumptions
applied in the estimation of useful lives and residual
values of machinery and equipment were supportable

by the evidence obtained and procedures performed.
ERBBERFNER  BMRREEREN M &L
15 80 R 55 R 4F B e R BA BB B 12 AT FE AR &Y #I B 2 1R
REEEAEBRIEFERF -
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B BT E

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.

HftE 8
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Repor
B BT E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT

BB GV ERRAENET
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (&)
(Continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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ndependent Auditor’s Repor
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to

eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

REMBEA RSV BRRARNEE
(%)

s HESKAMBRRMERLIRS
X BEENAT BERE UK
HEMBRRELTERRR S
FIH -

e B EEENERBIEBEDH
MBEEERARE @EEMNET
BE UNEUHREMBEREIER
ER-BMEE BEEFHHNA
M EBMRT - ZMABFER
EEDHELE -

FREMEBRIN  RAEEZRESEAET
FHEMEFTRE  RETHE  EAE#
BE  BRRMAEF B LA
B 1 fa] K RFA -

BREMEZZESRIENR @ SHARM
ENEABBIMENRBEERERER
WERMBFIEBB ISR MERRETE
BB AERBEMEMER UK
FEEANBRAT BB BIEES
BB 1T B S ERENA B #8451 -




AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Hin Gay, Gabriel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 June 2023
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onsolidated Statement of Co

mEEHERER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #%2023F3A31HLF/E

Revenue from contracts with customers
Cost of sales

Gross loss

Other loss

Other income

Administrative expenses

Reversal of provision for impairment of
trade and retention receivables, net

Operating loss

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance costs, net

Loss before income tax
Income tax (expense)/credit

Loss for the year

Loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

ltems that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss

Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive loss attributable to
equity holders of the Company

Basic and diluted loss per share
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The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income

should be read in conjunction with the accompany notes.

&
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Note
B 5

6
6
7

16(c)

11

W

o

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F&TT
416,854 362,514
(417,591) (420,036)
(737) (57,522)
(160) (1,171)
16,057 195
(46,535) (44,457)
7,342 -
(24,033) (102,955)
2,553 56
(9,530) (1,779)
(6,977) (1,723)
(31,010) (104,678)
(445) 3,981
(31,455) (100,697)
(31,455) (100,697)
(31,455) (100,697)
(690) 1,810
(32,145) (98,887)
(32,145) (98,887)
2023 2022

HK cents HK cents
BAL B
(1.87) (5.99)

B 2 E a7k e B BE AT 2 MY R — 6




Assets

Non-current assets

Right-of-use assets

Plant and equipment

Deferred income tax assets

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Deposits and prepayments

Current assets

Trade and retention receivables

Deposits, prepayments and other
receivables

Contract assets

Income tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

Note
B 5
BE
FIRBEE
EREEE 13
A % 7% A 14
ELEFMSHEE 20
BRATEGFAEMEE
WAZGREE 15
%e RIEMRE 16
REEE

EUEESHARRES 16
Be  BNRENEA

JE U F0E 16
EHEE 17
A Y 5 B 15 A¢
HEMEEEEY 18
EEHAE
e
& 75 19(a)
(] 19(b)
ERBE

As at 31 March 2023 74202343 A31H

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET TA&TT
22,235 13,199
527,186 524,935
5,452 1,371
21,650 22,340
- 2,525
576,523 564,370
152,293 99,984
11,692 11,913
33,817 =
31 11
197,074 127,928
394,907 239,836
971,430 804,206
4,200 4,200
495,754 527,899
499,954 532,099




onsolidated Balance Shee

mEEERER

As at 31 March 2023 74202343 A31H

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Deferred income tax liabilities
Lease liabilities

Amount due to a related company

Current liabilities
Trade and retention payables
Accruals and other payables

Borrowings
Lease liabilities

Income tax payable
Amount due to a director

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities
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The consolidated financial statements on pages 58 to 155
were approved by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2023 and

were signed on its behalf.

Lau Chun Ming

2|4 9
Director

EF

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in

conjunction with the accompany notes.

Note
Bt 5

23
20
13

24,28(d)

21
23
13

22,28(d)

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
49,674 7,200
43,880 46,549
11,200 4,126
100,000 -
204,754 57,875
91,758 70,360
17,598 13,561
146,153 90,680
6,274 8,474
4,939 1,157
- 30,000
266,722 214,232
471,476 272,107
971,430 804,206

SE58FE 166 A Z fir A M 15 R E M 2023F
6AAEEESH A YA TIALR

REE -

Leung Lai So

RE &
Director

EF
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #£2023F3A31H L F/E

Financial assets

at fair value
through other
comprehensive
Share Share income fair Other Retained
capital premium value reserve reserves eamings Total
BAVET AL
2EBAZEH
R RABE BEZLTERRE bt REEF @it
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin T#n T T Tn Tn
Balance at 31 March 2021 R021F3A31H 2 Ktk 4200 194,087 780 10,500 421,419 630,986
Comprehensive loss il |
Loss for the year EEER - - - - (100,697) (100,697)
Fair value gain on financiel assets ~ RAFEHAZMZERAL
at fair value through other SREEZATENE
comprehensive income - - 1,810 - - 1,810
Total comprehensive loss EEXEFRAE
for the year = = 1,810 - (100,697) (98,887)
Balance at 31 March 2022 R2020E3A31A 2 5 4,200 194,087 2,590 10,500 320,722 532,099
Balance at 31 March 2022 R2020E3A31A 2 5 4,200 194,087 2,590 10,500 320,722 532,099
Comprehensive loss 2EFE
Loss for the year EEER - - - - (31,455) (31,455)
Falr value loss on financial assets ~ FATEFAEMZERALZ
at fair value through other SREEZATERE
comprehensive income - - (690) - - (690)
Total comprehensive loss EEREFRAE
for the year - - (690) - (31,455) (32,145)
Balance at 31 March 2023 R2023F3A31R 2 Kk 4,200 194,087 1,900 10,500 289,267 499,954
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should Fitm e ERE R R EEMEN 2 M — 5

be read in conjunction with the accompany notes. BE o
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #%2023F3A31HLF/E

Cash flows from operating activities RE K& ZHHWR S
Net cash used in operations

Interest paid
Interest received

Interest element of lease payments
Restricted bank balances
Hong Kong profits tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of plant and equipment
Prepayment of plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of plant and

equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Drawdown of long-term bank loans
Repayment of long-term bank loans
Drawdown of short-term bank loans
Repayment of short-term bank loans
Principal elements of lease payments

Repayment to a director

Drawdown from a director
Drawdown from a related company

Net cash generated from/(used in)

financing activities

REEHMARSFR
EENEES,

B KA S

AE N H S 77
R BIIRTT AEER
ENERNEH

REZDFAREFRE

REREZHNRERE

T Ak N R A Y
B RIA

& R K R A
1S5} 1R

REZDFAREFHE

REMEEFHNRERE

REURHRITER
BERMBITER
REUAE BER 1T & R
EEEHIRITE R
ME MRz A& 70
BE—BEENA
—REFHETHFA

ol NG S0 S

BMEFBHRE (A
B& 38

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BERBELZEEY

cash equivalents

2, (Rd) R

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning M FEFHIE 2 K&

of the year

ReEED

Cash and cash equivalents at end of RELXNRERE L

the year

&Y

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be

read in conjunction with the accompany notes.

==
B

Note
Bt 5

27(a)

27(c)

tiatsRa

FIEE -

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
(47,685) (14,784)
(9,190) (1,334)
2,553 56
(340) (445)
- 3,192
(3,433) (107)
(58,095) (18,422)
(31,645) (7,740)
- (423)
1 3
(31,644) (8,160)
100,000 17,504
(13,383) (12,085)
148,675 288,347
(137,345) (282,563)
(9,062) (9,780)
(30,000) (50,000)
- 30,000
100,000 =

_______ 158,885  (18,577)
69,146 (40,159)
127,928 168,087
197,074 127,928

RenERMEEMEN 2 T —6f




GENERAL INFORMATION

Sam Woo Construction Group Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in foundation works and ancillary services in
Hong Kong and Macau.

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap.622. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except for the financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income (Note
15) which are stated at fair value.

—REH

=MEEEEAERAR (TARAE])
BIERSBESENE22E(RARIE)
(1961 £ RIS « &7 6 RIBFTA)
ERSESTMNLREREBR
AR o RN FEYFE M F BRI
M Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands °
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BN ZEBRRAE2IFE—
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21 IRBIEXE
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Rt AE([BEE
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BB IHRKRAE £ KA LR
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of the financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements, are

disclosed in Note 4.

(a) Amended standards and revised
conceptual framework

The Group has applied the following new
improvements and
interpretations for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 April 2022:

and amended standards,

Annual Improvements Annual Improvements 2018
- 2020 Cycle
Property, Plant and Equipment

- Proceeds before Intended

Projects
HKAS 16 (Amendments)

Use
HKAS 37 (Amendments) Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract
HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Reference to the Conceptual
Framework
Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 2021
Merger Accounting for

Common Control

HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

Accounting Guideline 5
(Revised)
Combinations

The standards and amendments listed above did
not have any impact on the amounts recognised

in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future periods.

2

2.1

REFBEBE(F)

RBLEE ()

REBEEBWHEREEARR
MBERRBERE THAR
@Eﬂﬁf - EEERERAE

BET BRI AE
#U@? g /%/F&?y#ﬂ%ﬁ‘ﬁzf%ﬁ
o HABRR R HER
BMBRREEATZENE
B 7O MY AE AT R -

(a) g«« dznf_gﬁ/& 450 5(
B2 HES

N E B 2 5202244818
IR FERE HEERE

FRLAT % aT RARIERT 2R
BEAR R
EEMERE  2018EE005EEL
FRuE
BRGHEN  0F BARRE-fR
FORZET  EREMOAERE

BReiEl  BRAD-ERHN
ERIL A TN
BEMBASED 2RHSER

LR b T
EAMBREEN 2015 RABNEEMR
FlohzBT  REMBLEM
gitESEE  ARENAKzANE
(¢3]) itk
BRI REFTH B E M
RN REEERATE
BRI & E A SRR

ELEEATE -
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards,
improvements and interpretations that

have been issued but are not yet adopted

Certain new and amended standards,

improvements and interpretations have been
published that are not mandatory for 31 March
2023 reporting periods and have not been early

adopted by the Group:

HKFRS 17
BAMBREENZTH
HKFRS 17 (Amendments)
BAMBRERNETR 2T
HKFRS 17

BBMBRERERFI7H

HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
(Amendments)

BAGHENE 1R RE BN KRS LR
EBRER2R BT

HKAS 8 (Amendments)

BB e 8% 2 BT

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

BREEAF12R B

2

BEREHBEBEE)

2.1

RBLEE ()

(b) BN AR
AT RATSATRA) -
it R

BT REETER - K
#ERREDRM - KRR
Bl £2023F3A31 R L&
Hif bl AR - EREALE
ERPEM :

Insurance Contracts
RBEH
Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
EAMBRERNETR 2 BTRRAA
Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9
- Comparative Information
BAMBRERNB TR RBEBNBRE
RRESR NS ER - RER

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

BEGHHR

Definition of Accounting Estimates

BitfhEt e R

Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising
From a Single Transaction

HE-RHELZEERARBBANELTHE

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning on
or after
RT3IE 8K
ZERBZ
ERE Bk

1 January 2023
2023F1R1H
1 January 2023
2023F1H1H
1 January 2023
2023F1H1H
1 January 2023
2023F1R1H
1 January 2023
2023F1A1H

1 January 2023

2023F1A1A
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAREFHERE ()
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 IRBIEE(E)
(b)  New and amended standards, (b)  EAEAE E R IRAE
improvements and interpretations that FTAT RACNSFTER
have been issued but are not yet adopted R AR (E)
(Continued)
Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning on
or after
RT3 B Hek
ZERR
ERE kS
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial Statement - Classification 1 January 2024
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause
BEAEREEN (2020F) MBHREN2I - R HAH B2 AR ZREEFRN 2024%1A18
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2024
BB EHRRE1R 2B BEENBERRBAFERD 202451418
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024
BAGENE 1R 2B MERENERDEE 202451 A1H
HKFRS 16 (Amendments) Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024
BEMBREENE 165 2 BT ERBEONEERR 202451718
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments) Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and To be determined
its Associate or Joint Venture
EEAMBREENFIORREBGHEDN REEZREMERAFAECEZANEENERTE HEE

F28H 2]
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards,
improvements and interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet adopted
(Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these new
and amended standards, revised accounting
guideline, amended annual improvements and
amended interpretation is expected to be in the
period of initial application. The Group does
not anticipate the adoption of them to have
a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

Principles of consolidation

2.2.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(note 2.2.2).

2

BEREHBEBEE)

2.1

2.2

RBLEE ()

(b)  EEE H K ERAAT
AT RAEIEETER]
MR FE(E)

AR B EE AU FHR] R
RISFT A - REERTRETIE
3 BEEFTFEIERKEE
A1 R TR MRS 10 #1146 FE R 1
REKNFTE - AEEE
R LS AT EHARE
Bl e B M BRI E
REAZE -

HLAEARZEA
2.2.1 KB A

(RI=NCIVE RN S et ol
FER(BRAEBER) -
AEEBAERZA2EE
BRI B) A 2 [ A R R A
A BBENBBEIERY
ERARDCRAREREM
W - MIAKEHZERE
BIEGIE - M B A F 8
BEAXEEZ BERELR
BARK - BIFLESZAE
BUHARA AfR ©

AEBERBEFTREEKE
BiRa AR (H3E2.2.2) -
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

Principles of consolidation (Continued)

2.2.1 Subsidiaries (Continued)

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

2.2.2 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets
are acquired. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises
the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business, the equity interests issued
by the Group, the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, and the fair value of any
pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either

at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

2

EX

2.2

B BRBE(E)

REARZRRA(E)

22.1 WERA (%)

NEIRR D - BHANEE R

A - RERMERITT
B BRIERHIREPER
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation (Continued)

2.2.2 Business combinations (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as

incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquired
entity over the fair value of the net identifiable
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss

as a bargain purchase.

2.2.3 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the

investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

2.4

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors that makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the profit or

loss.

2
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2.3

2.4

B BRBE(E)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, within
finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the statement of
comprehensive income on a net basis within
other gains/(losses).

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. Translation differences
on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For
example, translation differences on non-monetary
assets and liabilities such as equities held at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or
loss and translation differences on non-monetary
assets such as equities classified as fair value

through other comprehensive income are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2

BEREHBEBEE)

2.4
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

— assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing exchange rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation
of cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
rate on the dates of the transactions); and

= all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as in other comprehensive
income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of

the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of
the asset can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are expensed in
the profit or loss during the financial period in

which they are incurred.

Depreciation of both owned and leased plant and
equipment is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their costs to their residual
values over the estimated useful lives, as follows:

Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end

of each reporting period.

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount (note 2.6).

10-15 years
5 years
5 years
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and
are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at

the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2

EX

2.5

2.6

B EEBE (&)
B ERE (B

HEMELFSHEIREB
PSR SRR EE A LB
o ARNEAEERERA
FER -

FEeREENRE

EAEMHHRIBEANER
7R PR T 8 7T B SR U (30 B -
FEHB L EESRREETT
mal o MEBRREE 2R
EEBEERE BN E
R - A EERMAEE
B A SRR BH B A AN 2
EBEMETHRSE - N
ERER  BERAEED
BORNREREELEM
(REEEBM) TUOE -
HEBEAINZ FEREE
BRE - AIRSHRE B SR
AEBARER TR -




2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

Investments and other financial assets

(@) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at
fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”); and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss
or other comprehensive income (“OCI”). For
investments in equity instruments that are not
held for trading, this will depend on whether the
Group has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
the assets changes.

(b) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the

risks and rewards of ownership.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(c) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction cost of financial assets carried
at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset.

(1) Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income

from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement. Impairment losses are charged within
operating profit in the consolidated income
statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EARETHEBRE(2)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7  Investments and other financial assets 27 REREMEBEE(E)
(Continued)
(c)  Measurement (Continued) (c) ifE(#&)
Debt instruments (Continued) EETA(E)
(2)  Fair value through other comprehensive (2) RAFEFAEME

income A

Assets that are held for collection of contractual BFIEWREIE 4R e RE M
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, EEMEECEE  WiE
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely EERSREEEINASE
payments of principal and interest, are measured RFE - ARATFEFT AR
at fair value through other comprehensive HEEKAGE - REES
income. Movements in the carrying amount are gt AEmEmEBA - HER
taken through other comprehensive income, AR PR ZRER
except for the recognition of impairment gains = o E1E -~ B B R INE
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to profit or loss. Interest income from these WA o

financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
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in other gains/(losses) and impairment expenses J(E8) R 27 - mRER
are presented as separate line items in the YRR EEWEFR R P IEBEL

statement of comprehensive income. EHEZ7% -




2

otes to the Consolidate

e I RAR MR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be recognised
in profit or loss as other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other changes in
fair value.

(d) Impairment

The Group’s financial assets measured at
amortised cost are subject to HKFRS 9’s new
expected credit loss model. The Group assesses
on a forward-looking basis where the expected
credit losses associated with its assets carried
at amortised cost. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk. Note 3.1(c) set
out the details on how the Group determines
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(d) Impairment (Continued)

For trade and retention receivables, other
receivables and contract assets, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses
to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables. The provision matrix is determined
based on historical observed default rates over
the expected life of the contract assets and trade
receivables with similar credit risk characteristics
and is adjusted for forward looking estimates.
At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

Impairment on other receivables and deposits
and cash and cash equivalent are assessed
on a 12-month expected credit losses. If a
significant increase in credit risk of a receivables
has occurred since initial recognition, then the
impairment is measured as lifetime expected
credit losses.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the balance sheet where
the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts, and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The Group has also entered into arrangements
that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but
still allow for the related amounts to be set off in
certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the
termination of a contract.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

2.10

Trade and retention receivables, and deposits
and other receivables

Trade and retention receivables are amounts
due from customers for goods sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
Trade receivables are generally due for settlement
within 90 days and therefore are all classified as
current. Retention receivables are included in
current assets as the Group expects to realise
these within its normal operating cycle.

Trade and retention receivables, and deposits
and other receivables are recognised initially at
the amount of the unconditional consideration
unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised at fair
value. The Group holds the trade and retention
receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures
them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the
consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash on hand and
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturity of
three months or less.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares are shown in equity as a

deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12

2.18

Trade and retention payables, and other payables

Trade and retention payables are obligations
to pay for goods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities.

Trade and retention payables, and other
payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the
fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of
the facility to which it relates.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18

2.14

2.15

Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
pbalance sheet when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are charged to the profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources Will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required

in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15

Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the year
is the tax payable on the current year’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax
rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and considers whether it is
probable that a taxation authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures
its tax balances either based on the most likely
amount or the expected value, depending on

which method provides a better prediction of the
resolution of the uncertainty.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income
tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the
end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be

available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

BEREHBEBEE)

216 BAHREEFMSHR (&)
(b) BEEEH

BEEFMEHREBAEENLE
ERAERNRERERES
MHREOEREZENE
I Z BB - A
WIEEHR B R E B VT HER
BEELATE T AR -
HELEMERNELBR S
(RIBABERIN) R YT HER
MEEXRE BHR5E

BIYEEE TTEAK-
BELEFEHRIRBRE AR
ERMKERED - W
RERECHEHREEZR
SIRIEFTISH B BB ERE
R E (FOER) B °

BREHBREEEZERREH
ERR S BEANBE TR
ZRMEERA T URER -




2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and
value added taxes. Revenue is recognised when
goods are transferred or services are rendered to
the customer.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)
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2.17 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Depending on the terms of the contract and
the laws that apply to the contract, service may
provide over time or at a point in time. Service is
provided over time if the Group’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received
and consumed simultaneously by the
customer; or

° creates and enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs;
or

° does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to
date.

If service transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the

asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Revenue recognition (Continued)

If the Group expects the reference to progress
certificates issued by the customers, with
additional adjustments where necessary, depicts
the Group’s performance in transferring control
of goods or services promised to customers
for individual projects, the Group satisfies the
performance obligation over time and therefore,
recognises revenue over time in accordance
with the output method for measuring progress.
Under output method, revenue recognition
is based on the stage of completion of the
contracts, provided that the stage of contract
completion and the gross billing value of
contracting work can be measured reliably. The
stage of completion of a contract is established
by reference to the construction works certified
by independent surveyors.

If construction projects have no alternative use
to the Group contractually and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment from the customers
for performance completed to date, the Group
satisfies the performance obligation over time
and therefore, recognises revenue over time in
accordance with the input method for measuring
progress. Under input method, revenue on
construction contracts is recognised based on
the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of
the performance obligation, by reference to the
contract costs incurred up to the end of reporting
period as a percentage of total estimated costs

for each contract.

2

BEREHBEBEE)

WATER (&)

WEAREERZERS R
BHAERER (LEL LS
ZNEINFHR) HALEE
FLERIIE B MR P EED &
w8 Y IR T A B H 15
noAEEEERERETE
MEE ARREBEFEEE
F) B 0K BB 2 B R R AR

A REBEHE - WARE
HITTEC S B ERR - RIIRR A
TR M A KA TIENAE
SHEERARIELETE - &
HEKERE2EBIAE
AM AR RS )R EE T A2 M #ESL ©

HZEREBRANEARE
BEERAZAAEEF RS
HITENLESETKNE
B D M YEGRIE - A
SERERHEABITRAOE
T R RBFT EEE R
NEBEE R ERKA - 1R
BERNAE - BERAHHWA
TIRBASESETROE
BRTER S 1 et A #E
R ER2EHEREHR
FIEENBHRMMEBNE
AR A B DL




otes to the Consolidate

e I RAR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)
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2.17 Revenue recognition (Continued)

When the outcome of a contract cannot be
estimated reliably, foundation work and ancillary
service is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that are likely to be
recoverable.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included in supply and foundation
work and ancillary service to the extent of
contract costs incurred that are likely to be
recoverable.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for the services that
the Group has transferred to a customer. In
addition, incremental costs incurred to obtain
a new contract, if recoverable, are capitalised
as contract assets and subsequently amortised
when the related revenue is recognised.

Contract assets are assessed for impairment
under the same approach adopted for
impairment assessment of financial assets carried
at amortised cost.

A contract liability is the Group’s obligation to
render the services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration from the
customer. A contract liability is recognised by the
Group when the customer pays consideration in
advance before the Group renders the service to
the customer. Contract liabilities mainly included
the advance payments received from provision of
foundation work and ancillary services.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

217

Revenue recognition (Continued)

On the consolidated balance sheet, the Group
reports the net contract position for each
contract as either an asset or a liability. A
contract asset represents an asset where costs
incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised
losses) exceed progress billings; a contract
liability represents a liability where the opposite is
the case.

Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset except for
financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).

Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity or paternity leaves are not recognised
until the time of leave.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Pension Obligations

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident
Fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in accordance
with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance of Hong Kong. Under the rules of the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees in
Hong Kong are each required to contribute 5%
of the employees’ gross earnings with a ceiling of
HK$1,500 per month to the MPF Scheme.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the MPF Scheme and the Social Security Plan
is to make the required contributions under the
scheme.

(c) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to a termination when
the entity has a detailed formal plan to terminate
the employment of current employees without
possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than twelve
months after balance sheet date are discounted

to present value.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Earnings per share

(1)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing:

(i)

the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus elements
in ordinary shares issued during the year
and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures
used in the determination of basic earnings per

share to take into account:

the after-income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been

outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2 BEREHBEBEE)

2.20

()

ZRENZ T

BRERBNNTER

(i)

G UNGIE 2SN Z
(TR 58 AR A
BN 1 fr] (B B RE 25 K
) - BRIA

AR B B A B 3T
BRI
YHFREHTER
B AR B9 AT R T &R (R
BREEFRN) BHE -

7R EE Z T

SREFRFBEANEE
SREARFOYT - Ui
RATEA -

B0 75 4
BTl R A E
B ) 7 18 B 1
2. R

RRBBEETE
BIRE RS
TTRESNE AR IR
B




otes to the Consolidate

e I RAR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability at the date at which
the leased asset is available for use by the
Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group has elected not to
separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease
component. However, for leases of real estate
for which the group is a lessee, it has elected
not to separate lease and non-lease components
and instead accounts for these as a single lease
component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

o variable lease payment that are based on

an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement
date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising that i
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21

Leases (Continued)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability, if any.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate,
the Group, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received, and makes adjustments specific to the
lease.

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and finance costs. The finance costs are charged
to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21

Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of
lease liability;
o any lease payments made at or before

the commencement date less any lease
incentives received;

o any initial direct costs; and

o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the
lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and
all leases of low-value assets are recognised
on a straight-line basis as an expense in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Short-term leases are leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets
comprise small items of office equipment.

Lease income from operating leases where the
Group is a lessor is recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial
direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense
over the lease term on the same basis as
lease income. The respective leased assets
are included in the consolidated atement o
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22

2.28

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment are included in
non-current liabilities as deferred income and are
credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is
not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow
is probable, they will then be recognised as a

provision.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety
of financial risk: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of the financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on

the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out under policies
approved by the directors of the Company. The
Directors provide principles for an overall risk
management, as well as policies covering specific

areas.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets
and liabilities which are denominated in a
currency that is not the Company’s functional
currency.

The Group’s transactions are mainly
denominated in HK$. The majority of assets and
liabilities are denominated in HK$ and there are
no significant assets and liabilities denominated
in other currencies. Management considered that
the Group does not have any significant foreign
exchange risk in respect of transactions or
balances.

(b) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk is mainly
attributable to its cash and bank balances and
borrowings. Except for borrowings with variable
interest, the Group has no other significant
interest-bearing liabilities. Borrowings at variable
interest rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. Cash and bank balances at
fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. The Group has not used any interest
rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate
risk.

As at 31 March 2023, if the interest rates
on borrowings had been 100 basis-points
higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, post-tax loss for the year would
be HK$2,470,000 (2022: post-tax loss:
HK$817,000) higher/lower (2022: higher/
lower) mainly as a result of higher/lower interest

expense on floating rate borrowings.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
trade and retention receivables, deposits and
other receivables, contract assets and cash in
bank.

To manage the risk arising from cash in bank, the
Group only transacts with reputable banks which
are all high-credit-quality financial institutions.
There has no recent history of default in relation
to these financial institutions. The expected credit
loss is close to zero.

For deposits and other receivables, management
makes periodic collective assessments as well
as individual assessment on the recoverability
of deposits and other receivables based
on historical settlement records and past
experience. The management believes that the
expected credit loss is close to zero.

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s
policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, all trade and retention
receivables and contract assets are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

The Group applies the simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses prescribed by
HKFRS 9, which permits the use of a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade and
retention receivables and contract assets.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MR EE(£)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HKERREZEZE)
(c)  Credit risk (Continued) ) 1EEREE(E)
To measure the expected credit losses, trade AEtETEHEEERE - B
and retention receivables and contract assets BSHIBERRBEUAREL
have been grouped based on shared credit BEECERDMEERKBE
risk characteristics and the days past due. BRBBEHE S HE EHNE
The contract assets related to unbilled work ELRTEZARAETERR -
in progress and have substantially the same I HEFEE LR ERE S
risk characteristics as the trade and retention NI KRB & B R B R
receivables for the same types of contracts. The AR - A 0 NEER A
Group has therefore concluded that the expected fEU B 5 FRIA /) 7B BB 18 =X
loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable HENEERBIIRESH
approximation of the loss rates for the contract EERESIEHRE -

assets and retention receivables.

The expected loss rates are based on the EHERXNERGSEE
payment profiles of trade and retention B &R B HA R0 HA A A0 e U
receivables and contract assets over the period SHRERREBEURENE
before the consolidated balance sheet date BB S R AN B fE A P A
and the corresponding historical credit losses FEEEEBTEEEE - B
experienced within this period. The historical EEEET KRB ARB
loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and BRPHBEERRFIENRE
forward-looking information on macroeconomic B A = 2 IR B &R E 1+
factors affecting the customers to settle the Er e AEEEREELE
receivables. The Group has identified the Gross FRESMAB R EERE
Domestic Product (GDP) and the construction (GDP) & K AN & A&
expenditure index of the cities in which it MHMERZE YBEHERZE
operates to be the most relevant factor, and EE=mTEHAZE mAZRT
accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based EEiE R -

on expected changes in these factors.

The Group overall considers the shared credit AEBEERLEIE S
risk characteristic and the days past due of BRRBEHGEERRR
the trade and retention receivables as the BB EATTETE
measurement for the expected credit loss. HEEEE -

For trade and retention receivables and contract FLHT A RS B Ak H FE UL
assets due from customer with different credit BEREIKE 55E KRS
risks, such as customers that the Group has STUAREHEEMS @ A
identified with financial difficulties, the Group S BB # 58 R B 7 R 2 A
applies the individual identification method BE  AEEERS @R
based on the classification of credit risk of each BREEERR BB ER
individual balance. BAITTE -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 8 BERRER (&
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HKERREZEZE)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) 1=EERE (&)
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 March B AR 2 & % - 7202843 A
2023 and 31 March 2022 was determined as 31H Kk2022%F3H31H -« &
follows for both trade and retention receivables: WESHIE KRB EE
BERERAT -
More than More than
30 days 60 days
31 March 2023 2023%3H31H Current past due past due Total
g b
B #i@308 ##iB60H ey
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTAERT FTAET FTHERT FTART
Hong Kong o
Expected loss rate BHEEX 1% 0% 71%
Gross carrying amount M
— trade receivables —EWE 5B 92,355 - 21,893 114,248
Gross carrying amount IR
— retention receivables -ERRES 55,712 - - 55,712
Gross carrying amount REAE
- contract assets —aNEE 33,817 - - 33,817
Loss allowance BEERE 2,101 - 15,566 17,667
More than More than
30 days 60 days
31 March 2022 2022%3831H Current past due past due Total
BN HA HBiB30R BiB60H Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Hong Kong o
Expected loss rate BHEEX 0% 0% 0%
Gross carrying amount R
— trade receivables —EWE 5508 29,138 378 24,154 53,670
Gross carrying amount REAE
— retention receivables —ElREE 46,314 = - 46,314
Loss allowance BERE = = = =
Macau b ]
Expected loss rate BB R 100% = =
Gross carrying amount REAE
- contract assets —AMBE 25,009 - - 25,009

Loss allowance BERE 25,009 - - 25,009




3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MR EE(£)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 WMBEBEXRE)

(c)  Credit risk (Continued) ) 1EE=EE (&)

The Group categorises trade or other receivables WEBARERITE LN
for write off when a debtor fails to make P AEBEEKERE SN
contractual payments. Where trade or other TH 3 H b & USRI 75 28 /EHl
receivables have been written off, the Group 3o MEIWE S TE S EAth
continues to engage in enforcement activity to EWHIBED S AEEE
attempt to recover the receivable due. Where BEETRETEHINER K
recoveries are made, these are recognised in 5] 21 B fE WL R IE (15 BAUR
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. B5KE - BIRERE 2 E K

RHPER o

() Liquidity risk @ EEBEEE
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that an entity mBESRERIEEBH IR
will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations TURNBREXZ—c/mE
associated with financial liabilities that are settled ENEESRABNIEEE
by delivering cash or another financial assets. Fry R o

The Group maintains liquidity by a number of AEEFBAZEFN (B
sources including orderly realisation of short-term RAEERABEENBRLT
financial assets, receivables and certain BERFEREHeREE &
assets that the Group considers appropriate WRBERETEE) EFR
and long-term financing including long-term }ER AEBENREEE
borrowings are also considered by the Group HREME (BERHER)
in its capital structuring. The Group aims to MABEEREEN - AEEH
maintain flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient B ESBERET CIRITE
bank balances and interest-bearing borrowings MErBEN  MERFES
which enable the Group to continue its business WS - EBASERA

for the foreseeable future. B REESEEER -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group categorises trade or other receivables
for write off when a debtor fails to make
contractual payments. Where trade or other
receivables have been written off, the Group
continues to engage in enforcement activity to
attempt to recover the receivable due. Where
recoveries are made, these are recognised in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interests payments computed using contractual
rates, or if floating, based on the current rates at
the year-end date). Where the loan agreement
contains a repayable on demand clause which
gives the lender the unconditional right to call
the loan at any time, the amounts repayable are
classified in the earliest time bracket in which the
lender could demand repayment. The maturity
analysis for other borrowings is prepared based
on the scheduled repayment dates. Balances due
within 12 months equal their carrying balances,

as the impact of discounting is not significant.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 R ERE (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HBERREZEE)
(d)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (@  EEBEZER(E
On
demand

and less Between Between

than 1and2 2and5 Carrying
1 year years years Total amount
REXRK

PR-F -EWFE —EILF gt RELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
tTExr TEx TER TER TE=R

As at 31 March 2023 2023538318
Trade and retention payables [ERE 5708

kErBe 91,758 - - 91,758 91,758
Accruals and other payables JERTFB &

H it 1T 308 2,147 - - 2,147 2,147
Amount due to related company  FE{ B3 EE A B ZIE - 105,554 - 105,554 100,000
Borrowings 5 149,663 48,934 1,741 200,338 195,827
Lease liabilities HEAE 7,406 4,661 7,505 19,572 17,474

250,974 159,149 9,246 419,369 407,206
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2022
Trade and retention payables

Accruals and other payables
Amount due to a director

Borrowings
Lease liabilities

R2022F3F31H

I E 53R
REBE

FERT 3R I H o fE
HIE

ERN—2EEHRE

T

HERE

3 BERBERE (&)
31 HBEREZRE)
(@  REELEE (E)
On
demand
and less Between Between
than 1and2 2and5 Carrying
1 year years years Total  amount
REXR
PR—F —EWME —ERF B RES®E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THr  FTETL  FTET  TFTErT  TERL
70,360 - - 70,360 70,360
1,980 - - 1,980 1,980
30,000 - - 30,000 30,000
91,442 6,125 1,226 98,793 97,880
9,061 3,490 700 13,251 12,600
202,843 9,615 1,926 214,384 212,820
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2  Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital

are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue

as a going concern in order to provide returns for

shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders

and to maintain an optimal capital structure to

reduce the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of

equity and borrowings.

In order to maintain or

adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust

the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,

return capital to shareholders, issue new shares

or sell assets to reduce borrowings. The Group

monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. The

gearing ratio is calculated as net debt divided

by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total

borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. The

gearing ratios were as follows:

Borrowings (note 23)

REff—

Amount due to a related company
(note 24)

Less: cash and cash equivalents W
(note 18)

Net cash

Total equity

Gearing ratio

t& 3R (f15£23)

B RAEE

(H15t24)

(B1iE18)

Ha

RSB

BEAMBLER

As at 31 March 2022, the Group was in net cash
position, taking into accounts its borrowings and

cash and cash equivalents.

3

RIFA

Re MRS EEY

M ER ()

3.2

BEARKRE R

AEEEREANBRERR
EAREERERENEE
71 e AR R E ] &
REMESHE AR
& R RERENERE
BAREEARRA

AEENENEBREED
KRBT © RUER TR EARR
B AEEREAEIN TR
REOBRE2HE  MRREEER
&~ BT EEEAR
DER - AEBENEEABL
REREN - BERBHLEN
BEFERNEERTE -8
BFREARETRR S MRS
EHEY -BEERBLERNT

2023
HK$°000
FER

2022
HK$'000

TAET
195,827 97,880

100,000 =

295,827 97,880

(197,074) (127,928)

98,753 (30,048)

499,954 532,099

20% N/A & A

A2022F3A31H &K Z &
HEFARBESRIREEE
Y REBENFIRESMR



e I RAR MR

otes to the Consolidate

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BXERERE (&)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEMEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial REBHERMEE (BAF
assets (other than financial assets at fair value Bt AEME2mEKAZ £/
through other comprehensive income) and BEKRIN RepaE (81
financial liabilities, including cash and cash HekReEEY  RBKE
equivalents, trade and retention receivables, SHREEREBE R RE
deposits and other receivables, trade and fth FEURIE - BN B 558
retention payables, other payables and FREE EthENAFKER
borrowings approximate their fair values, which &2 A2 H B 858 sk iR 0%
either due to their short-term maturities, or that KRR ZEEERE
they are subject to floating rates. BENREEEKENATE
HE -
The carrying amount of amount due to a director N —2EEFENKRAEE
was a reasonable approximation of its fair value. REATENEGEDH -
The Group’s financial instruments are measured ANEBZ & T AL AU
in the consolidated balance sheet at fair value by BRYE 2 HE S AR
level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to ERRiGeEERBRIZA
measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised FEAR - ZEW ABZRR
into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as ATFTEHERFERNAT=
follows: [E :
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
E—IF E=F E=H
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET T
2023
Financial assets at fair value BAFEETAEAM
through other comprehensive E2EKAZ
income (Note 15) SREE (MiF15) - - 21,650
2022
Financial assets at fair value RAFEFTAHM
through other comprehensive E2EBAZ
income (Note 15) CRUEE (M1iE15) = = 22,340
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.8  Fair value estimation (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2023, there were
no transfers of financial assets of the Group
between different levels of the fair value hierarchy
(2022: same).

For the year ended 31 March 2023, there
were no significant changes in the business or
economic circumstances that affect the fair value
of the Group’s financial assets (2022: same).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are addressed below.

3

M ER ()

3.3 ARFEME(E)

H £2023%F3A31H ILF
B UEASESREEST
AFEEBRAZTRERZ
R B (20224 : 4R ©

# =2023%F3A318 It F
B HEXEESRMEEDR
B B 75 Sk A B IR IR I R
BAEF (20224 : #HA) °

BERE A RAR

fiEt R HR YR IR = 488 B A
R (R EEBIER T AR E
IR AR TS (8
k-

ARER B R RAE 5T R RER © 3L
BRHERERME - BREE
RO EAHERGERER - B
=EBRER T ESBERENEER
BENREEELEAFBOMGE
KRR T
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(@)

Construction contracts

The Group reviews and revises the estimates
of contract revenue, contract costs, variation
orders and contract claims prepared for each
construction contract as the contract progresses.
Budgeted construction costs are prepared by
the management on the basis of quotations
prepared by the management on the basis of
quotations from time to time provided by the
major contractors, suppliers or vendors involved
and the experience of the management. In order
to keep the budget accurate and up-to-date,
management conducts periodic reviews of the
budgets of contracts by comparing the budgeted
amounts to the actual amounts incurred. Such
significant estimate may have impact on the profit
recognised in each period.

The Group recognises its contract revenue
based on the satisfaction of the performance
obligation either input method or output method,
by reference to the contract costs incurred up
to the end of reporting period as a percentage
of total estimated costs for each contract, or
according to the percentage of work performed
to date of individual contract of construction
works as a percentage of total contract value.
Because of the nature of the activity undertaken
in construction contracts, the date at which the
contract activity is entered into and the date
when the activity is completed usually fall into
different accounting periods. The Group reviews
and revises the estimates of contract revenue,
contract costs, variation orders and contract
claims prepared for each construction contract

as the contract progress. Management regularly
reviews the progress of the contracts and the
corresponding costs of the contract revenue.

4

BER

Gt R HE (E

BEAH

AEEREHETRRT R
B RERECNRENE
KRN~ BRI - BEIR
BREMNREMG - EEE
RIFEEERRNBE (T
RESLEFEEMEEZAZE
A HEE SR B T
IRt mEMAEE) LE
B RRREIEERANE
B BERERNTHNE
5 EEEREAHBRES
BREREESEME Y
BHREETEN - ZHE
NGt AT RER BN & HAM A8
w0t A o

AEBRBHBEOEMENE
TRB AR AR E
BHRRA - BEHR2EEER
THREENA ORGSR
BABMBET AN A D
BEBURETIEANESE
ETHIRAEEANEERZ
B - ARRBRESD
EITRBNME - 54ES
BRI B HIEE B Ry SERK B
HAEEBRTRNE
B AEEERNAKETHE
Rat RIER] R EREANR
BB HWA - BRI
BERAREHREMRET -
EEETRRTANERER
BHBARBBRA
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(o)

Estimated useful lives and residual values of plant
and equipment

Management estimates useful lives of the plant
and equipment by reference to the Group’s
business model, its assets management policy,
the industry practice, expected usage of the
assets, expected repair and maintenance, the
technical or commercial obsolescence arising
from changes or improvements in the market.
Residual values of the machinery and equipment
are determined based on prevailing market
values for equivalent aged assets taking into
account the condition of the relevant assets or
the value of scrap metal and other economic
considerations. Depreciation expense would
be significantly affected by the useful lives and
residual values of the plant and equipment as
estimated by management.

If the residual values of plant and equipment
had further decreased by 10%, the depreciation
expenses would increase by HK$7,580,000
for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022:
HK$6,747,000).

If the useful life of plant and equipment had
further decreased by one year, the depreciation
expenses would increase by HK$5,298,000
for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022:
HK$4,169,000).

4

ERG A RAE (F)

W R R B AT R ERF
BRI EE

EEE2EAKENES
B EEEEERK 17
XIER EEFEHRSE &
HeehRs EWHEL
HREE R ET
EEEF - bR MR AR
A fE AR - AR KRR EY
R EEDRERRSRE
BEMBRITHEEE @ Wt
RABBEERIRTKEED
BEIEMEEEERE -
BB AL AR S R A
A R A B R R R B E S
TEEREEARTE -

ERBERENTSRER
E—FRA10%  AIREE
2023 3A31H IEFE /T
€ & A #5145 107,580,000
70 (20224F : 6,747,000/
JT) °

ER N REN A ERF
HE— R —F - AIRE

ZE2023F3A31H IEFEH
T & & R & 12 105,298,000
7T (20224 : 4,169,000
JT) °
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

©

Estimated impairment of non-current assets

The Group assesses whether there are any
indicators of impairment for non-current
assets at the end of each reporting period.
Management considered the Group as one single
cash-generating unit as the major business
of the Group is engaged in foundation works
and ancillary services in Hong Kong which
is the smallest identifiable group of assets
that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent. Plant and equipment are tested for
impairment as plant and equipment contribute
substantially of the Group’s non-current assets.
Plant and equipment are tested for impairment
when there are impairment indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of
an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on available data from market
quotations of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of
the asset. Management determines the market
values of plant and equipment by reference to

comparable market transactions.

4

BER

gt R HE (F)

FRBEENGEIRE

AREBNZHE R HIE
MEBEERBFEEMARE
BR- - ARNAEENTEE
BREBANRSEHETRE
KBRS Y - BEER
RAEERE-—HREEL
B BELEABUBILAR
EMARNRNABREE
AR o BRI R REBER
SEMFERBEETIGLLE
R B S R TR
BRI - BERETRET
REEAEERKER &
B N R 1T RUE R
Ao EEEXREELEN
ZAREEBSE AT @ $ 5
(BDE 2 B R & AN 22
HEREBEZESE)F -
BIFERE - A FEREL
ERAZRBRUEBENT
BmEXATERNTIHER
MBEABERELEEEN
BERAGE ERE2E
M5 LA BB 5 A E
ERWMEREOTE -




4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4

BEEETHETRAE (E)

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(©

Estimated impairment of non-current assets
(Continued)

Such valuations with reference to comparable
market transactions are made based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainties
and might differ from the actual result. In making
the judgement, reasonable consideration has
been given to the underlying assumptions by
adjusting the differences to reflect current
prices in active market for plant and machinery
of different model, condition and age. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual
market data and sales transactions in the market.

In the impairment review for plant and equipment,
management has performed sensitivity analysis
by discounting the market value. Management
believes that any reasonably foreseeable changes
in any of the above key assumptions would
not cause the carrying amounts of plant and
equipment to exceed the recoverable amounts.

Fair value of the financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Management considers the fair value of the
unlisted securities mainly represented the fair
values of the investee’s investment properties,
net of its net current liabilities. These investment
properties are determined by using valuation
technique. Details of the judgement and

assumptions have been disclosed in note 15.

FRBEEMMBETRE (&)

MALBTIBER S 2%
—AETETJ%E’VE:F{E““
fEH - MZERJEAETHE

EE - WRIBERBRERT
[ - EELHIER - 2 A2
ZRAARR T SHE
Z BRI R R ER D

RIZSE « AR RIRAERAF
HERRMISHIRITER -
ZEEFTEEHEERTS
BEMTHHEEISIEL

R 12 M W K 2% 18 B ORK (B
B EEEEBUBAME
ETHRESN - EEER
A DI EREEBRRHE
MEEAEREEHH T EE
UMK N 524 0 BR T (B AR 1
AU el & 58 o

BRATFESFARMBEEEA
LEMEEZAYE

E.EEJE AR FLEMERZ
AFEHEBZEREEFRE
mEZ AFEGIRER
BETHE) - HEREME
TERABEFETE - 1864
HIHT R AR ER 2 BRI EE15
PR -




4

otes to the Consolidate

e I RAR MR

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

©

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are
based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Group uses judgment
in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based
on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in
Hong Kong and Macau. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in
the period in which such determination is made.

REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH
CUSTOMERS AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue from contract with customers, which is also the

Group’s turnover, represents gross contract receipts on

foundation works and ancillary services in the ordinary

course of business. Revenue recognised is as follows:

Foundation works and ancillary

services

A T A2 N B AR5

4

BER

gt R HE (F)

TREERME

TREEBBRBBEDHER
FRENRRREHER
RZBEREH - REREH
R AEERBAKEBE
RSk BREF T UL M AT HE 1 1h
At BBHEHFL R EFRER
REERRENAEZH AR
i o

CIRER

AEEBHME D RIRM
PRI - EIRTEFSHER
B AFELHEAHE - -BZ
AR 5 Nt B EABEE H&
RBRBER - ARERERE
SMRIBE R HNGEE -
REFAHEBEFEENE
Ao BERERHENREHIA
BRENTARHESED
Rl AlZEEEGEHELE
3 8 7E /O IR 9 B H SR AE
PIRBEERBBEKRT
%,

EFEHNBARDHER

EPANRAEEREXKBRESD
B TR NP B AR5 B AR & K R
R MAARENZEER - EAR

WA
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T F&TT

416,854




REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH
CUSTOMERS AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified
as the executive directors of the Company. The
executive directors regard the Group’s business as
one single operating segment and reviews financial
information accordingly.

Revenue from foundation works and ancillary services
are recognised over time during the year 31 March 2023

(2022: same).

(@) Segment information

The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from
customers in Hong Kong. The principal assets
of the Group were also located in Hong Kong as
at 31 March 20283. Accordingly, no analysis by
geographical segment is provided.

(b) Revenue derived from major customers

External customers which individually contributed
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group for
any of the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022
are as below:

Customer A
Customer B
Customer C
Customer D

BEPHF
BEE L
PR
BERPT

EFENBARDBER ()

ARBNATESHREREETE
BERRA -HITESHAKED
EBE R EE—RKED - X
HEERMS AR

RELE2023F3A31H IEFE b
T 72 K BT 8 BR 75 A Uk A T & s R
R (20224 : HEF) °

@ DHEEM

AEBEHNRAETERERE
BEP o # 220233 731
B AEENEZEEENNM
RES - Bt - WERHIR
@ D EBHEITH DT o

b) REEXEEFHKA
RE E2023%F 202243 A

318 ILE A —EFZE B
BAEERABFENRNK

ABEBBI0%ZINAT P
R

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
255,747 154,796
57,865 57,880
N/ATE H 35,807

N/ATE A 88,532
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Compensation from litigation

(Note 16(c))
Others

6 OTHER LOSS, AND OTHER INCOME 6
Other loss E i Es
(Gain)/loss on disposal of plant and & # % & & E &
equipment (Yezs) &8
Write-off of plant and equipment il S5 e ok % R
Other income H g A
Government grants (Note (a)) BT 8 B (B 22 (a)

AW E (HiE16(c)
Hth

Notes:

(a) During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
received government grants including from Employment
Support Scheme (“ESS”) under Anti-Epidemic
Fund, which is related to Coronavirus Disease 2019
(“COVID-19”) amounting to HK$5,368,000 (2022: Nil).
There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingents
attached to the grants.

HinsSBUREM WA
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TAT
(1) 66
161 1,105
160 1,171
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFAT
5,447 136
10,527 -
83 59
16,057 195

Btat -

(a) HE2023F3A31BLLFE
7 5= B YCER 89 BSUAS # B B B B
BIEESET [R5t
21 B 2% X H # B)5,368,000/8
7T (2022%F : BB L) » HE
201978 MK m = m ([201978 Ak
SR B - &I E
Bt 5 £ o] R 38 B 1614 sk B A
B o




7 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Cost of sales (noted (b))

Construction contracts costs
(note (a))

Depreciation
— owned plant and equipment
— right-of-use assets

Repair and maintenance

Others

Administrative expenses
Staff costs, including directors’
emoluments (note (c))
Auditors’ remuneration
Depreciation
— owned plant and equipment
- right-of-use assets

Operating lease rental in respect of

— office and storage premises
— directors’ quarters
Professional fees
Motor vehicle expenses
Bank charges
Exchange (gains)/losses
Others

Total cost of sales and
administrative expenses

HERA (Kt b))

BES KA
(Kt (a)

e
—BERRNIE
—ERERE

mERRE

H Al

TR

BETIRA(BHEEEHE)
(it (c))

% B B

nE

—BERRNRERE
—EREEE
UTEENEEHEHS
—-WMRERBEME
—EEEE

BEXEH

MERAX

RITAX

EX (Kw) / BE
Hith

5 RN I

THRHAX#R

BMESINRAX

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
380,098 380,035
25,341 25,022
538 31
1,688 1,298
9,926 13,650
417,591 420,036
17,036 16,581
1,613 1,613
831 892
7,846 9,529
4,845 3,830
1,445 -
4,664 3,524
3,276 3,332
681 562
(132) 125
4,430 4,469

| .. 46,535 44,457
464,126 464,493
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Notes:

(@)

EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued)

Construction contract costs included but are not
limited to costs of construction materials, staff costs
(refer to note (b) below), consultancy fee, parts
and consumables, subcontracting charges and
transportation.

Cost of sales included directly attributable contract costs
amounting to HK$360,273,000 (2022: HK$394,209,000).

Wages and salaries TERF®
Pension costs — defined contribution RIK® KA

plans —E R ARG E
Employment benefits EERH

Less: amount included in cost of sales & : ST ASER A2 &5

Five highest paid individuals

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the five individuals
whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
include three directors (2022: three) whose emoluments
were reflected in the analysis presented in note 31(a).
The emoluments paid to the remaining two individuals
(2022: two) are as follows:

Salaries, other allowances and
benefits in kind

Bonus TE4T

BMERSNRAX (F

Hat -
(@)

BESHKRABEETRR
BEMBKA - BTRA (2
RTXME®p)  BERER -
ZHREREm - DBEARE
BEA -

HERABDIEEEREEZAL
Bk A360,273,0005% 7t (2022
£ 1 394,209,000/ 7T) ©

e HtREREWREN

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHBT
126,460 134,548
3,454 3,951
841 1,223
130,755 139,722
(113,719) (123,141)
17,036 16,581
hEmEHAT

HZE2023F3HA31HILEFE -
AEBREZZSHA LS
BIE=8 (2022 =4) &
= HEHM S R K ES1(a)
MAMAEY - MEBRRHZ
(20224 : ME) AT ZHH
&R -

2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHERT T T
2,925 2,940
245 245

3,170 3,185




EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued) 7 BRUEEE WX (&)
Notes: (Continued) Wizt - (&)
@) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (d) hEmERmH AL (E)

The emoluments of these individuals fell within the

following bands:

HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000

1,500,001 7T 22,000,000/ 7T

No emolument was paid by the Group to any of the

directors or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for the loss of office.

FINANCE COSTS, NET

Finance income

— Interest income on bank deposits

Finance costs

— Interest expense on bank loans

— Interest expense on bank

— Interest expense on lease liabilities

overdrafts

— Interest expense on amount due

to a director (note 28(b))

— Interest expense on amount due

to a related company (note 28(b))

Finance costs, net

ZEANTHHMEN FLATE
:

Number of individuals

AH
2023 2022
2 2

AEEHMERENESIR
ABRBFALTINERMME
ERMARSEERMAKRE
] By O 22 B SR B B A

8 MBER-FE

FHHA
—IRITFERAF B LA

MIBEER
—RITEROFEMAX
—RITEXWHEMAX

- HEABHFERAX
—E—REEREN
MBE R (faE28(b))
— e —FEREEE A B B/
B X (Ha£28b))

MBER—F8

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
2,553 56
(5,885) (1,304)
- (7)
(340) (445)
- (23)
(3,305) =
(9,530) (1,779)
(6,977) (1,723)
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9 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 9 Fr8sipx, (ER)
The amount of income tax charged/(credited) to the RéFe2mlERIE GEA) 8
consolidated statement of comprehensive income FriSfie®EiE ¢
represents:
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Hong Kong profits tax BBMEH
Current income tax BREAFT1S % 3,151 1,111
Deferred income tax (note 20) RIEFTB R (A17720) (6,750) (5,235)
(Over)/under-provision of current EFRHRFTISBLAY
income tax in prior year (BBERE) BETR (27) 143
Macau complementary tax BPIFTIS
Current income tax BUEAFT 1S %X 4,071 -
445 (3,981)
Hong Kong profit tax is calculated at 16.5% (2022: BB MEBIRE A5 B R = 7
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. #916.5% (20224 : 16.5%) 5T &
Macau taxation is calculated at tax rates applicable to BRI IR AAE B EER A

jurisdictions in Macau at 12% (2022: 12%). FREA12% (20224 : 12%) 51 & °




INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continued) 9

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
tax rate of Hong Kong as follows:

Fresimx (ER) (&

7 B 713 B AR PO B A R R
FEAREIENERHENER
M

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET BT

Loss before income tax K BT 1S %5 Bl E 18 (31,010) (104,678)
Calculated at tax rate of 16.5% 1216.5%M T LT E M T8 (5,117) (17,272)
Tax effects of: NTEENBRBLE
Tax rates of overseas operation FINETS LR (1,649) 29
Income not subject to tax BEFRH KA (1,307) (15)
Expenses not deductible for tax DGR3
purposes 3,303 39
Tax losses for which no deferred W EFERIEEFTIS T B &
income tax asset was recognised R IEEE 7,465 13,281
Utilisation of previously RN ETERRZ
unrecognised tax losses I EE (2,048) =
(Over)/under-provision of income EFEAMSHN (BEEE)
tax in prior year BETR (27) 143
Effect of two-tiered profit tax rates 15 5 iR 4% 6l 2 72 2
regime (note) (K1:) (165) (165)
Tax reduction HIBER (10) (21)
Income tax expense/(credit) RS (K&E) 445 (3,981)
Note: Hiit -

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”)
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime.
The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was
gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of qualifying
corporations will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of corporations
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at 16.5%.

R2018F3H21 8 - HENLEZ BB
C2ONTFEBIE (BFT) (FB75R) RAIE
Z)([EBIBER]) - HS|AFEH®R
Wil o FZ GBI EZEMR2018F3 A28H
EEBRAEG - WHRBBAERRT
o BBEFSHMRSH - GERDE
/) 82,000,000 7T @ ) #5 #28.25%
B9 Bt A FL ¢ i A8 12,000,000 7T
20 M 812 16.5% K T =L o A
& IS 5 R AR ) B A% B 1 208 F1 i A
1BI1Z16.5% M B B EF -
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DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

LOSS PER SHARE
(a) Basic

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing
the loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the respective
years.

Loss attributable to equity holders of ZN2 &4z A A
FEAE B 1R (T8 L)

AEEREREF®
T AR I AE T 2

the Company (HK$’000)
Weighted average number of

ordinary shares for the purpose of
(F R0

calculating basic earnings per share
(thousands)

Basic loss per share (HK cents)
(b) Diluted

Diluted loss per share is of the same amount
as the basic loss per share as there were no
potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding for
the year ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

FRENERGEW)

3=\

EETTEZIMAEZE2023F &
2022F3A31H |FFE IR RHEAK

B o

BREE
(a) HAR
BRREREETREAAT

RS A AL ERERIAM
FAFEERITEBRINEY

BBGHE -
2023 2022
(31,455) (100,697)
1,680,000 1,680,000
(1.87) (5.99)

b

BERAESEEEGRER
E1EAER - RN EEE
20234 K% 202243 A31H Ik
FEWERITEMNETEE
TR o
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SUBSIDIARIES

Name

=L

Directly held by the Company:
HAAREERS

Sam Woo Group Limited
(“SW (BVI)")

(T=FBVI)))

Capital Plus Group Limited

Indirectly held by the Company:
HADRBERS

Sam Woo Bore Pile Foundation
Limited (“SWBP")

M ERRAR (=Mt E])

Sam Woo Construction &
Engineering Limited

CHERERARAA

Sam Woo Engineering Equipment
Limited (“SWEE")

“MERERAR ([=MER])

Place of
Incorporation and

kind of legal entity

AL 3t B R
EEEREER

British Virgin Islands,

limited liability

company
RERAEE

BRRA

British Virgin Islands,

limited liability

company
RERAES -

BRAA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&8 ARAH

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

54 ARAT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

55 BRAT

Particulars of
issued share
capital

ERTRAHR

10,000 ordinary
shares of US$1
each

10,000/%
BREMEIET
i AR

2 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

2R A%
EEIET
(LA Rk

50,000,000
ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

50,000,0008%
ghEAENET

Vg @R

100,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1
each

100,0008%
BREGBIAT

IS

500,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1
each

500,0008%
BREBIAT

IS

12 MEBAFE

Effective interest

held as at

FiERER

2023 2022
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Principal activities and
place of operation

TEXBREBME

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

RERRK

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Hong Kong

REBEMHETIRR
TR ALK B RS

Trading of and leasing of
machinery and equipment
in Hong Kong

REBEERMSHEM
R

Leasing of machinery and
equipment in Hong Kong

REBHERMER
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name

R

Indirectly held by the Company:
(Continued)
HAAREESS : (8)

Sam Woo Foundation Limited
(“SWFL")

Sam Wooltt EE R A Al
(TSWit 2 )

AA Foundation Limited

ENBEERLA

Sam Woo Givil Contractors
Limited

“MEARIRERDA

Sam Woo GCivil Works Limited

=MNERERAH

Sam Woo Foundation Limited

ZMHETIRERRF

Place of
Incorporation and
kind of legal entity
TMA L ER
EEERER

Macau, limited liability
company

B BRAT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&8 BRAH

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

5% ARAT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&8 ARAT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

& ARAH

Particulars of
issued share
capital

ERTRAHE

2 ordinary shares
of MOP15,000
each

REREE
15,0002 P9 %
L R

40,000,000
ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

40,000,000
BREGBIAT
L R

10,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1
each

10,000/%
BREEIAT
5 @R

2 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

EREE
1B TLE L Bk

2 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

B REE
BRI L @R

12

Effective interest

held as at

FiEERER

2023 2022
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

MEAR (&)

Principal activities and
place of operation

TEXUREEDE

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Macau

RRMETHETR
R ER 40 B AR 7

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Hong Kong

REBETHETRE
T bR 440 B AR 75

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Hong Kong

REBETHETR
R B B AR 75

Inactive

TER%

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Hong Kong

REBETHETRR
TR B R 7S
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name

1

Indirectly held by the Company:
(Continued)
HAAREERSS ()

Sam Woo Finance Limited

“HHBERAR

Sam Woo Asia Development
Group Limited
“HENEREEERAA

Sam Woo Foundation Group
Limited
S EEEERAA

Redland Contractors Limited

TREEARAR

Place of
Incorporation and
kind of legal entity
TMALER
ZEERER

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&8 ARAA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

& ARRT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&8 ARAA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&8 ARAT

Particulars of
issued share

Effective interest

capital held as at
ERITRAFEE FEERER
2023 2022
2 ordinary shares 100% 100%
of HK$1 each
REREE
1B TR AR
1 ordinary shares 100% 100%
of HK$1 each
1REREE
1B TR AR
1 ordinary shares 100% 100%
of HK$1 each
1REREE
1B TR AR
2 ordinary shares 100% 100%

of HK$1 each

2B EREE
1B TR LB

Principal activities and
place of operation

TEXUREENS

Inactive

EREY

Inactive

EREN

Inactive

EREN

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Hong Kong

REBETHETR
REREE0B R
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LEASES

This note provides information for leases where the

Group is a lessee.

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance

sheet

Right-of-use assets

Of which are:
Properties
Machinery and equipment

Lease liabilities

Of which are:
Current lease liabilities
Non-current lease liabilities

Note:

Hep
S
o

S
FEEE S
ERBRE S &

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year
ended 31 March 2023 were HK$17,420,000 (2022:

HK$7,918,000).

13

HE

A ERHERAREEREEA
MEENER -

(@)

REZRBERBERERNSE

25
EHEEE
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F&T
2,884 10,730
19,351 2,469
22,235 13,199
HEEE
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T FET
6,274 8,474
11,200 4,126
17,474 12,600
Htat -

HZE2023F3A31 HIEFER
B A% E E /17,420,000
7 7T (20224 : 7,918,000/8
JL) °
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LEASES (Continued)

(o)

Amounts recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income

Depreciation of right-of-use assets of
HK$538,000 (2022: HK$31,000) have been
included in cost of sales and HK$7,846,000
(2022: HK$9,529,000) have been charged in
administrative expenses for the year ended 31
March 2023.

Expenses relating to short-term lease for office
and storage premises of HK$4,845,000 (2022:
HK$3,830,000) and directors’ quarters of
HK$1,445,000 (2022: Nil) have been included in
administrative expenses.

The total cash outflow for leases for the year
ended 31 March 2023 was HK$15,692,000
(2022: HK$14,055,000).

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases offices, factory premises and
staff quarters. Rental contracts are typically made
for fixed periods of 1 year to 3 years with no
extension and termination options.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions including lease payments and lease
terms.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, no lease is
committed but not yet commenced.

13

HE(#E)

(o)

REBERDZREZNEE

A =2023F3A31H 1
FEME ' 538,000/ T
(20224 : 31,000 7T) K
ERREENEET AT
& A - 7,846,000 7T
(20224 : 9,529,000/ 7T)
B TR I -

EABFAERERMEZ
% BRI 7E & &9 F 24,845,000
77T (20224 : 3,830,000/
7T) REETEE 1,445,000
7T (20224 : 2 IL) B
AT -

#H £2028343A318 It F
B -HENRERLEER
15,692,000% 7T (20224 :
14,055,000/ 70) °

NREFENHSEERE AR
R
REEHERAE BEKR

BIFEE MEANEEIR
1E23FWEEHREIL - I
mETAE AR LR -
THE R IRE R R =
RIS RN E S I YNE S
% BEEENRKREEH
PR °

R2023%F K20224 3 H31
H @ WEB &
HMEE -

A 18 5 K FE 4R
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14 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 YN
Machinery Furniture
and and Motor
equipment fixtures vehicles Total
BHRRE HAREE AE @zt

HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TR TAT

At 31 March 2021 M202143A31H
Cost AR 846,466 1,538 9,895 857,899
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (303,995) (1,231) (7,890) (313,116)
Net book amount REFE 542,471 307 2,005 544,783
Year ended 31 March 2022 HZE2020F3A31H
HFE
Opening net book amount FNHREFE 542,471 307 2,005 544,783
Write-off Hif 54 (1,105) - - (1,105)
Disposal & = = (69) (69)
Additions NE 5,795 757 688 7,240
Depreciation ne (24,878) (216) (820) (25,914)
Closing net book amount FREEEFE 522,283 848 1,804 524,935
At 31 March 2022 20223 A31H
Cost B AR 850,422 2,294 10,419 863,135
Accumulated depreciation 2EITE (328,139) (1,446) (8,615) (338,200)
Net book amount REFE 522,283 848 1,804 524,935
Year ended 31 March 2023 #HZ2023F3A31H
HFE
Opening net book amount FNERFE 522,283 848 1,804 524,935
Write-off MisH (161) - - (161)
Additions NE 28,055 200 329 28,584
Depreciation nE (25,245) (251) (676) (26,172)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 524,932 797 1,457 527,186
At 31 March 2023 #2023F3A31H
Cost A 877,991 2,495 10,728 891,214
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (353,059) (1,698) (9,271) (364,028)
Net book amount HREFE 524,932 797 1,457 527,186
(@  As at 31 March 2023, plant and equipment (a) H2023F3A31H &% A
amounting to HK$62,260,000 (2022: 62,260,000/% JT (20224 :
HK$50,864,000) were secured for the Group’s 50,864,000/ JT.) & 14 ik &
bank loans (note 23(e)(ii)). BERIEASERITERD

A (P 5E23(e)(ii)) °
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Opening amount FHEEE
Fair value (loss)/gain ATE (BB ks
Closing amount FREE

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income is unlisted equity securities in
Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 20283, the Group holds 5% of issued
capital of Gold Champion Enterprises Limited which
is an unlisted entity principally engaged in investment
properties holding (2022: same).

Management considered the fair value of the unlisted
securities mainly represented the fair values of the
investee’s investment properties, net of its net current
liabilities. These investment properties which are situated
in Hong Kong are valued by an independent valuer, LCH
(Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited (2022: LCH (Asia-Pacific)
Surveyors Limited), with reference to prices realised
on actual sales and/or asking prices of comparable
properties of similar size, development scale, nature,
character and locations. The valuations have been made
on the assumption that the owner sells the investment
properties on the market in their existing state without
the benefit of a cash rebate, deferred terms contract,
leaseback, joint venture, management agreement or any
other similar arrangement which could serve to increase
the value of the properties. Management considered that
the net current liabilities approximated their fair values
due to their short-term maturities.

The fair values of financial assets through other
comprehensive income is within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy (see note 3.3).

BAFEFARMEZERAZE
MEE

BRAFESAEMBEEEAZRAE
BE

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&T
22,340 20,530
(690) 1,810
21,650 22,340

BRFEFARMEERAZ SR
BERRBABZIFLTIRARZS -

MR2023F3A31H - "EEREAES
BEEFRAFEZETRASY °
SHAFEREREMELRZIE
T E R (20224 : AR) °

ERERE  ELEMBEHZAFE
FERWREFREWEZ A TFE
(MBRETBAEEFHE)  %FR
BYEMRBSD  DEZREUK
NS BRERREMEE  BEIUVE
WA LM ENERHE R EIRD
B &,k BB 1% R IE L (HER A
BT RIS R AR A A (20224 : 7
BITREMARAR) EITHE -
HEDBREEE AADERRES
B EREREYEmERS B -
BLEEREY  EEHE - 680
¥ TEmESNEREMATIRAY
XEBEEZEULHERNGTE - E2E
RERDEEFARE P HMmME
MEAFEE -

FAREMBEERAZEREEZA
FTEHBAAFEEBHRZE=H (R
Bff353.3)

2023F F3R | ZMEE
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16 TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES, 16 RBREFHERREE  URE
AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER € -FBENREREMEKRRE

RECEIVABLES

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TAT
Trade receivables (Note (a)) FEWE 5 5/ I8 (K172 (a) 114,248 53,670
Retention receivables (Note (b)) EUURE & (A7 (b)) 55,712 71,323
Trade and retention receivables BYESRERRES 169,960 124,993
Less: loss allowance (Note (c)) W B (M) (17,667) (25,009)
152,293 99,984
Deposits, prepayments and other e~ FAA 8 & A FE U
receivables (Note (d)) FKIB (K7 aE(d) 11,692 14,438
Less: non-current portion B0 FERNEREE - (2,525)
Current portion B ER &6 5 11,692 11,913
Notes: HiaE -
(@) The credit period granted to trade customers other than (a) BREWRBEIN  BEHERFE—
for retention receivables was generally ranged from BEFASEQHMEEH -
45 to 90 days. The terms and conditions in relation to R EMR B B IR R GEE
the release of retention vary from contract to contract, EEEXHMAFRRTE @ AlgEA
which may be subject to practical completion, the HEBET - RIEETHTE
expiry of the defect liability period or a pre-agreed EHTEWHBERE R 2 HF
time period. The Group does not hold any collateral as Br o R BN R AR
security. miEREA -
The aging analysis of the trade receivables based on JEUNE 5 R IBBIEE R H H
invoice date was as follows: RRRER DT T
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
1 to 30 days 12304 92,355 29,138
31 to 60 days 31£60H - 378
61 to 90 days 61290H - =
181 to 365 days 1812365H 1,327 24,154
More than 365 days B iE365H 20,566 -

Total st 114,248 53,670




16 TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES, 16 RBREFHERREE URE

AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER £ ENTERHMEKRZE

RECEIVABLES (Continued) (&

Notes: (Continued) Hiat : (&)

(o) Retention receivables are settled in accordance with the (b) ERREBCEERSENEY
terms of the respective contracts. In the consolidated 1R - REREEERRBR
balance sheet, retention receivables were classified as A ERIRB e ERREE
current assets based on the operating cycle. The aging E - EREERBREIIRE
of the retention receivables based on invoice date was BIEZEZHBHARRIT :
as follows:

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

FBxT FAT

Within 1 year —F R 14,333 5,903
Between 1 and 5 years —ERF 34,856 37,369
More than 5 years B idhF 6,523 28,051
55,712 71,323

(©) Movements in the provision for impairment of trade and (©) IR E 5B RIRE 2R E
retention receivables are as follows: BEEEHOT -

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

FBxT FHT

At 1 April ®4818 25,009 25,009

Reversal of provision for impairment & U% & 5 7018 &
of trade and retention receivables, &8 % 5 (& & &5 &[]
net (note (i) and (i) — 588 (A aE0) (i) (7,342) -

At 31 March MR3A31H 17,667 25,009
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TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES,
AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

(Continued)
Note (i):

In February 2017, SWFL, a subsidiary of the Company,
filed a civil procedure in Macau court against a
customer to claim certain outstanding retention
receivables amounted to MOP10,447,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$10,134,000), and compensation
for certain variation order amounted to MOP10,830,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$10,505,000) for
the works carried out by SWFL for the customer,
totaling MOP21,277,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$20,639,000) (the “claimed amount”). The First
Instance Court delivered a judgement against the
claims in June 2018. An appeal was launched against
such judgement in January 2019 before the Second
Instance Court which then agreed that part of the
evidence submitted by SWFL should have been
considered by the First Instance Court when it made
its original judgment. After the judgment made by the
Second Instance Court, the customer lodged a further
appeal to the Court of Final Appeal in December 2019.
Such appeal was denied by the Court of Final Appeal
in June 2020, and the First Instance Court issued a
revised judgment in February 2021, demanding the
customer to pay the claimed amount and interest
compensation of MOP8,684,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$8,423,000) to SWFL.

In January 2022, the Second Instance Court heard the
appeal filed by the customer for the claimed amount
and ruled that the grounds for appeal were untenable.
The customer appealed against the above judgement
to the Court of Final Appeal in March 2022. The Court
of Final Appeal denied the appeal submitted by the
customer in July 2022. Subsequently, SWFL received
the claimed amount of MOP21,277,000 (equivalent
to HK$20,639,000) and interest compensation
of MOP8,684,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$8,423,000), totaling HK$29,062,000 in November
2022. In January 2023, SWFL further received
MOP2,169,000 (equivalent to HK$2,104,000) from
the customer, representing compensation for litigation
costs.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, management
has reversed the full provision previously made
against the retention receivables of HK$10,134,000;
recognised the interest compensation of HK$8,423,000
and litigation cost compensation of HK$2,104,000 as
other income, and recognised the remaining amount
of HK$10,505,000 as revenue which represented
compensation received for variation order for works
performed in the past but no revenue was recognised
until the current financial year when the recoverability of
such amount was ascertained.
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TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES,
AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(©)

(Continued)
Note (i): (Continued)

In addition, SWFL had another retention receivable,
amounted to MOP15,335,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$14,875,000), due from another
customer. The customer did not settle the outstanding
amount to SWFL due to the fact that the customer has
lost its court proceeding in preserving the land use
rights to the relevant construction site. Management
had been seeking to negotiate with the customer for
the recovery of the retention receivables but there
had not been any significant progress. As a result,
management made a full provision on this retention
receivable during year ended 31 March 2019.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, after rounds
of negotiation with the customer, SWFL has received
HK$14,875,000 in February 2023. As a result,
management has reversed the full provision made
against the retention receivables of HK$14,875,000 in
the current financial year.

Note (ii):
Impairment and risk exposure

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade and retention
receivables and contract assets.

Information about the impairment of trade receivables
and the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign
currency risk and interest risk can be found in note 3.1.

The balance mainly represents rental deposit,
prepayment for sub-contractor fee, prepayment
for plant and equipment and other miscellaneous
prepayments.

The carrying amounts of trade and retention receivables
approximated their fair values and were denominated in
HKS.

16

EREZRERRES  UARE
T BEAREREMBERRE
(&)

Kz

(©

(&)
(%)
Bt sEG) - (48)

SN - SWih E B B 5 — %
= FE 4 % 515,335,000 9
¥ (88 K #914,875,00078
T ZEWRBE - ARZE
FERBHBEEI W 2 =
3 {55 FA 428 B 5 BE B RA AR BER
ZEPIEASWH EEER
BAEELE -TEE—H
EXREZEFBTAKES
FARUBIRE S @ T EEME
KNERE - At - BEREREE
20193 A31HILFEARA
FARUIRE SIEL 2585 -

N E £2023F3A31H Ik F
B EEZEFZ W iE
SWith £ 2 R 2023452 A Y 3
14,875,000/ 70 - A It + &
BEERAVRFED &L
5 7 e W IR B8 £14,875,000
ETLIE Y 2 B -

B 5 (i) -
B 18 R J3

AEERBBEMBREE
AIEOR LA ERMEER
BB e RKE SRR
REESAREBHNEEFERE
BEFERERERES -

BEREWE S RBRERE
SEEERR - SMNERR KA
K@\ e B R BN T RESA o

REBRTIEREERE  HE
BIEMR - MR RERTR
R IR A Je H At TR TR A 3K
I§ o

R 5 0B R AR B K0 IR
EEREAFERE WS
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CONTRACT ASSETS

Contract assets (note) BREE(MiT)

Note: Contract assets related to construction services consist
of unbilled amount resulting from construction when the
cost-to-cost method of revenues recognised exceeds
the amount billed the customer. The contract assets
are transferred to trade receivables when the rights
become unconditional.

17 BHEE
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET
33,817 =

Wiz BREREAEBIANEE
BREEAEERBELNEHE
A L FE A E B A
EFRIKRENSERNR
FMVRESHE - AWEEER
BANSSERTHEERER

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18 HERELEEY
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFAT
Cash at bank 1T 4 196,972 127,802
Cash on hand FEoHIH S 102 126
Cash and cash equivalents HERREEED 197,074 127,928
Maximum exposure to credit risk i &= EERR 196,972 127,802

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents
were denominated in the following currencies:

HK$ T
Macanese pataca (“MOP”) SEPIEE (RFPIE])
Others EAb

REe RS FEMNREENA TS

K EHE
2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

T FBT

189,337 127,740

7,709 160

28 28

197,074 127,928




19 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND 19 BAX- - BROEERRE

RESERVES
(@)  Share capital (@  B’AE
Number of
shares HK$
B & B BT
Ordinary Shares, authorised: LERCGEE)
At 31 March 2022 and R2022%F3A31H &
31 March 2023 2023%F3H31H 4,000,000,000 10,000,000
Ordinary shares, issued and TER(BEBTRER) :
fully paid:
At 31 March 2022 and R202293 8318 &
31 March 2023 20233 H31H 1,680,000,000 4,200,000
(o)  Share premium and reserves by BO&EERREE
Financial assets
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
Share income fair Other Retained
premium  value reserve reserves eamnings Total
RATEA
Af2EUA
LEREE
RBRE  2ATERE RitEfE REEA i
HKS 000 HK$000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000
T Thn ThI Th Th
(note)
(W)
At 1 April 2021 H021E4R1R 194,087 180 10,600 2149 626,786
Loss for the year ERER - - - (100,697) (100,697)
Fair vaug gain on financil assets at FYOCI BATEALHZENAL
SREE A TENE = 1810 = = 1810
At 31 March 2022 03RS A 194,087 2,590 10,500 320,722 527,899
Loss for he year EEEE - - - (31,455) (31,455)
Fair value loss on financial assets at FVOCI BATEFALHZENAL
SHEEIDTEER - (690) - - (690)

At 31 March 2023 R2023F3R31 194,087 1,900 10,500 289,267 496,754
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SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND

RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Share premium and reserves (Continued)

Note:

Other reserves of the Group represented the difference
between the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the reorganisation over the nominal value
of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange
thereof and the difference between the aggregation of
the nominal value of the share capital of SWBP and
SWEE acquired over the nominal value of the share
capital of SW (BVI) issued in exchange thereof pursuant
to the reorganisation completed in 2003.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax and liabilities are offset when there

is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets

against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.

Deferred income tax liabilities
Deferred income tax assets

BREFRBHRAR
EEFEREE

The movement on the deferred income tax account was

as follows:

Balance at 1 April
Recognised in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive
income (note 9)

Balance at 31 March

MR4A18 2 a8k

RiEFAEZERERA
WER (H1i29)

HA3A31H 2 &8

19

20

A~ RADEE R H#E (E)

b)  BPHE LS (&)

wat -

REBHEMFHERBESEA
Frik B8 HO B B A R M AR AR i
BRBEEBRATEITAR
AR A E A = 8 R ER
20034 ¢ Ak #Y & 48 BT U B8 89
= 0 L B2 = F0 A% A 59 IR AR
HEEAT - SR ARIA R
AN T 3 1T 89 = M(BVI)AX AR &
ERZEH -

I FE P 1S B

ELMEHREABERA A RERH
HITHER G B EATE TR & 2= B B H 7
HAGBYH BRTEHRFHER—
Bt M A R A T AR 8 o

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx FHT
(43,880) (46,549)
5,452 1,371
(38,428) (45,178)

BIEFSTRR B #EHMT

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBx FHTT
(45,178) (50,413)
6,750 5,235

(38,428) (45,178)
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
without taking into consideration the offsetting of

20 EEFEH(E)

balances within the same tax jurisdiction, were as SREEH) IR

follows:

ERERBAABEMEENES (LT
ERMERRFERIAEEREAN L

Deferred income tax liabilities REMSHEE
Accelerated
tax
depreciation
IR IBITE
HK$'000
TAT
Balance at 1 April 2021 R2021F4 A18 2 &5 88,173
Recognised in the consolidated statement of REEEZE B R AER
comprehensive income (2,808)
Balance at 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 R2022%F3A31H &
2022% 4 A1 8 2 &6k 85,365
Recognised in the consolidated statement of Rére 2 mEEERNER
comprehensive income 1,028
Balance at 31 March 2023 R2023F3A31H 2 & 86,393
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTSHAEE
Unrealised Tax
profit losses Total
AEEER BIEEE et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TExT FExT
Balance at 1 April 2021 R2021F4 A1 H 2 & = 37,760 37,760
Recognised in the RERE 2 E =K AER
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income - 2,427 2,427
Balance at 31 March 2022 R20229F3H31H &
and 1 April 2022 2022F 4 A1 8 2 & &% - 40,187 40,187
Recognised in the RERE 2 E KK A ER
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income 4,081 3,697 7,778

Balance at 31 March 2023

R2023%3 A31H Z &k 4,081 43,884
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
Deferred income tax assets (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2021, a subsidiary of
the Company has received a letter from the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Department of Hong Kong (“IRD”), where
the IRD disagreed on certain depreciation allowances
claimed in relation to the years of assessment from
2012/2013 to 2015/2016. The subsidiary is at a
taxable loss position and is entitled to lodge a formal
disagreement towards the IRD’s Statement of Loss or
within one month after the IRD issues a tax assessment
incorporating the loss to be issued in subsequent years
as and when the subsidiary turns to a taxable income
position. According to the IRD’s calculation, the tax
losses brought forward will decrease by HK$32,738,000.
The corresponding impact on the deferred tax liabilities
arising from accelerated tax depreciation as at 31
March 2023 would decrease by HK$5,402,000, whilst
deferred tax assets arising from tax losses as at 31
March 2023 would also decrease by the same amount.
These impacts have not been adjusted in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements as at 31 March 2023
because the directors do not agree with the IRD’s
assessment that such depreciation allowances should be
disallowed (2022: same). The Group is in the process of
seeking advices from their tax consultants as to how to
take further action in respect of this letter and continues
to provide for deferred taxation based on management’s
best estimates.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that realisation
of the related tax benefit through future taxable
profits is probable. As at 31 March 2023, the Group
had unrecognised tax losses of approximately
HK$150,336,000 (2022: HK$118,177,000) that can be
carried forward to offset against future taxable income,
of which an amount of an amount of HK$150,336,000
has no expiry date (2022: HK$752,000, HK$1,311,000
and HK$653,000 will expire in 2023, 2024 and 2025
respectively and HK$115,461,000 has no expiry date).

20

WL PR S BL ()

BREFRSHREE (&)

REZ2021F3A31HILFE @ &
AR HHBAREZEEEBHRE
BUEBR]) KK - BB RHTE
M B A B 52012/2013E E &
2015/2016F ENTH FERFE A
TFHERFZE - ZMB AR EER
ERBEERE  MEEEAER
U AAKEER - BIBRERBEBR
HEFEELDFTH (WARBER)
B—EAAREFTEEBRANEZIED
FRARE - RIEFHBRHOTE @ &
B K 7 78 B 48 15 Rk 4232, 738,000/%5
JC ° PR2023F 3318 - A& 0 Fi
THITE i E A REF T8 & E AR E
¥ 2 15/ 15,402,000 7T 0 MR
202343 A31A AR EE B M = 4
MIELERHEEENSINRAERS
He ARNESTIRERSEBIEH
W RAETEEREETESR
FigE B SFETEAENEEE
F2023F3 A31 B MR A M EHhE
P (2022F - fHA) - AEH
[ IF SRR SRR A E B AR L K
HHEREGE— 01T - WEEREE
B ENREGTREEHR B R
1% °

fis] AT 5 1B R R B R Bl m A 2 1R
EEHEMNZ S Emi
HEEERELCMEMEE °
MR2023F3H31H @ K& B 0] &
DU R 2R SR B A K R
W R E B B 4 5150,336,000
77T (20224 : 118,177,000/8
Jt) ° H F150,336,000/% JT I £
B H B (20224 : 752,00078 7T -
1,311,000/ 7T 653,000/ 7T 7 Al
1% 20234 ~ 20244 20254 |
B+ LA K2 115,461,000 Jt 3F £ |
83R) -
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TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES,
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables
Retention payables

Total trade and retention payables
Accruals and other payables (Note)

Note: The amounts mainly represent accruals and other
payables for constructing work-in-progress, wages,
legal and professional fees and transportation costs.

The aging analysis of the trade payables based on

invoice date was as follows:

0 to 30 days

31 to 60 days

61 to 90 days

91 to 180 days

181 to 365 days
More than 365 days

e 8 5 500R

ENRES

ENESFAMRESHER
J& 5+ RRIR K EL i B < 5R0R

(Bat)

0%30H
31Z60H
61%290H
91%180H
181Z%365H
B 18365 H

ERESRERRES - ER

T
TA

15 R H A FE T RRIE
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
76,359 55,692
15,399 14,668
91,758 70,360
17,598 13,561
109,356 83,921

Wit ZEFAIEARBEEET
BoFHe ARRIFXERH
18 B P 7R Y JRE R RO e E A fE

A -

e B 2 AR B E R A MM ARE

AT -
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
29,767 30,943
5,653 798
2,774 96
888 1,221
22,991 1,389
14,286 21,245
76,359 55,692
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TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES,
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

In the consolidated balance sheet, retention payables
were classified as current liabilities. The aging of the
retention payables was as follows:

Within 1 year —F R
Between 1 and 5 years —FRHE
Over 5 years HF

The carrying amounts of trade and retention payables
approximated their fair value and were denominated in
the following currencies:

HK$ BT
MOP JELPT
Others HAfty

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR

The amounts due to a director is for operational use,
denominated in HK$, unsecured,
repayable on demand. In April 2022, the amount was
fully repaid.

interest-free and

21

22

ENEZREARRES  BEtR

TR EL Al R A RROR ()
REEGEERBEERA  BNRES
DTERRBAR - B RESHK
T
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRx THET
3,236 3,482
2,674 4,735
9,489 6,451
15,399 14,668
BNEZRERRESHNEEE
BENFEBE  WATIEER
& :
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
TRz THET
86,570 64,251
4,431 4,431
757 1,678
91,758 70,360

BN —-REERE

N —RERRBENEEREEL
B BERETEE BEER %
B REZENKER - R2022F48 -
EHARBEETR2HEE-




23 BORROWINGS 23 AR

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Non-current EREB
Long-term bank loans RHEIRITER 49,674 7,200
Current &
Short-term bank loans HHIRETEX 93,813 82,483
Current portion of long-term R—FERIBHEEN
bank loans due for repayment RERITER®
within one year B ER&F 5 52,340 8,197
146,153 90,680
Total borrowings BN 195,827 97,880
During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group has B ZE2023F3A31BILFE ' &A%
drawn down loan from a new hire purchase facility and a BECaHAERERTEHERIR
new term loan. The hire purchase facility is secured and BER- - HERESEEBRER
repayable in May 2025. The term loan is secured and 20255 EE - EHHIERAE K
repayable in September 2024, KR AR2024F9HEIE ©
(@)  The maturity of borrowings was as follows: (a) BB BRI T ¢
(i) Bank loans () RITEH
The maturity of bank loans are as follows: IRITEFMEHRBERDOT
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Within 1 year —F R 146,153 90,680
Between 1 and 2 years —ERF 47,946 5,981
Between 2 and 5 years —ERF 1,728 1,219

195,827 97,880
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23 BORROWINGS (Continued)

(o)

The weighted average interest rates were as
follows:

Short-term bank loans EHISRITE R
Long-term bank loans REIRITER

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings
were denominated in the following currencies:

HK$ BT

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings
approximated their fair value as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

The Group’s banking facilities are subject to
annual review and the utilised facilities comprise:

Eiig i
i

Secured
Unsecured

(i) an unlimited guarantee given by certain
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2023 (2022:
same);

23

B (&)

(o)  INEFHFERMT

2023
HK$°000
FiER

4.8%
3.8%

2022
HK$'000
TAET

2.5%
3.2%

) AKEEFRWEREEA TS

BWEHE
2023
HK$°000
TExT

195,827

2022
HK$’000
TAET

97,880

(d BRFIRFE

YREA &

SENEREREELRAF

BEE -

) AKEMRTE

BEESFEE
BIENT &

M EBRERRENT
I8 :

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TET
22,014 15,397
173,813 82,483
195,827 97,880

(i) R20234F3H31H -
BE TH B AR
B PR FE HE R (2022
F R &
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AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY
On 20 June 2022, the Group has obtained a loan from a
related company amounting to HK$100,000,000. At 31

March 2023, the amount due to a related company is
unsecured and repayable on 30 June 2024 (2022: Nil).

The effective interest rate per annum at 31 March 2023
was 4.4% (2022: Nil).

COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at R EREHIR 2 54
the end of the reporting period but BRAREEZ
not yet incurred are as follows: BARLZWAT :
Property, plant and equipment LE L&

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has given guarantees
on performance bonds of HK$36,570,000 (2022:
HK$14,386,000) in respect of two construction
contracts of the Group in its ordinary course of business
(2022: two). The performance bonds are expected to be
released in accordance with the terms of the respective
construction contracts.

24

25

26

FE S — P B Bt X R IR

R2022F6 8108 ' A& BB —
il 8 B 2 & B 45100,000,0007% 7T
B - 1K2023F3A318 @ B —
MEABARREAERBRER
202456 H30H B & (20224 : &
BT °

MR2023FE3A31EM B ER R A
4.4% (20224 : #) o

A&
B AN EHE
2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT T T
- 422
RAEE

R2023F3A318 ' AEEHME
AEERBEBHE AN MIERE
A% (20224 : WIE) KB #)1R (X
£ H #E1R /536,570,0005% 7T (2022
£ : 14,386,000/ TT) ° X EE 4

R TERT AR IB AR B2 SR A WO R
RERRR
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27 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 27
OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Reconciliation of loss before income tax to net

cash used in operations:

Loss before income tax
Depreciation of plant and
equipment (note 74)

Depreciation of right-of-use

assets (note 13)
Reversal of provision for

impairment of trade and
retention receivables, net

(note 16(c))

(Gain)/loss on disposal of plant

and equipment (note 6)

BRETS R AT ES 18

e K R BT E
(Htat14)

EREEEITE (W:£13)

U & 5 FIA K
RETREHREBRD
— B (MiE16(c)

SR K R A
(Wa) B8 (ffit6)

Write-off of plant and equipment i 4 i i & 3%

(note 6)
Finance income (note 8)
Finance costs (note 8)

Changes in working capital:

— trade and retention
receivables

— deposits, prepayments and

other receivables
— contract assets

— trade and retention payables

— accruals and other payables

— amount due to a director

Net cash used in operations

(Ktite)
MU (K iE8)
MBER (HiE8)

LEEGED
—ERESFEAR
REE
% BEARER
H A & R IR
—AKNEE
—-ENESZREAR
RE &
— R RER
H A FE {5 3R
—EBN—R2EFHA

RETHMAE S FR

REREREBRME

(@) BRFTERAE BT T

FrR3R & ) FRE M H AR ¢
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TAT
(31,010) (104,678)
26,172 25,914
8,384 9,560
(7,342) -
1) 66
161 1,105
(2,553) (56)
9,530 1,779
3,341 (66,310)
(44,967) 52,765
2,323 (4,646)
(33,817) -
21,398 11,433
4,037 (4,834)
- (3,192)
(47,685) (14,784)




27 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Net debt reconciliation

This section sets out the reconciliation of liability
from financing activity for each of the years

27 HGEBRETREBRME(E

B R

AEEIN 25| 2 B FEHIR
BEPELZRBENHE-

presented.

Liabilities from financing activities

REEZDELZER
Amount
Lease Short-term Long-term due to
liabilities bank loans bank loans directors Total
R K JEf
HERE RITER RITER EEEN @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TET TAT TET TET
As at 1 April 2021 #0014 51 R (13,468) (76,699) (9,978) (50,000 (150,145)
Cash flows: FET -
- Principal element of ~ —BEMHA%
lease payments i 9,780 - - - 9,780
- Drawdown of bank -RERTER
loans - (288,347 (17,504) - (305,851)
- Repayment of bank ~ —EBHITER
loans - 282,563 12,085 - 294,648
- Repayment to -BE-%EZ
a director FQE] - - - 50,000 50,000
- Drawdown from ~—ZEEEY
a director 0 - - - (30,000) (30,000)
Non-cash flows: FH2:
~ Addition - lease ~FE-HE 0,918) - - - 9,919)
- Lease modification -HREEBIT 1,006 - - - 1,006
Asat 31 March 2022 R2022%3A31R (12,600) (82,483) (15,397) (30,000 (140,480)
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27 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 27 4“ABLSKRERWSE (&
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(o)  Net debt reconciliation (Continued) b) TFEBHEE)

Liabilities from financing activities

MEEDELZEE
Amount
Amount due to
Lease  Short-term  Long-term due to arelated
liabilities  bank loans  bank loans directors ~ company Total
EN-B
il S ENEE BEELR

HERR®  BOEX  RAEX B B it
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TRER TER TER TR TR TEL

As at 1 April 2022 R2022F4F1H (12,600) (82,483) (15,397) (30,000) - (140,480)
Cash flows: HEm
- Principal element of lease  ~BEMZAS
payments #4 9,062 - - - - 9,062
- Drawdown of bank loans ~ —RREUBTER - (148,675)  (100,000) - - (248,675)
- Repayment of bank loans ~ —BEHTEH - 137,345 13,383 - - 150,728
- Repaymenttoadirector ~ —BE-4E%
HE - - - 30,000 - 30,000
- Drawdown from /N
a related company BYHFE - - - - (100,000)  (100,000)
Non-cash flows: FREET
- Addition - lease -hE-HE (13,936) - - - - (13,936)
As at 31 March 2023 R2023E3A31H (17,474) (93,813) (102,014) - (100,000) (313,301)
(©) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, ) MREABEREXRP HE
proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment W LEENFASERIES
comprise: 1z -
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Net book amount (note 14) BREFE (fE14) - 69
Gain/(loss) on disposal of plant & # & 3% 5
and equipment (note 6) Wik, (E18) (f7at6) 1 (66)

Cash proceeds from sales of HE MR K SR IR &

144
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability
to control, jointly control or exert significant influence
over the other party in holding power over the investee;
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and the ability to use
its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
investor’s returns. Parties are also considered to be
related if they are subject to common control or joint
control. Related parties may be individuals or other
entities.

(a) The directors of the Company are of the view that

28

BEBALRS

BAEE A LA RE NS - L REH]
IR 75 o A A ] B RIR A
TEERNNALITEEAZE NN
AL BERESFEBESERKR
ﬁﬁ%T&@ﬁ%ﬂhi%ﬂMA
T AABESRRETNENT

EREELRSBEOAL - THF
72 1l Sl Bt & 122 Il O A 1 TR AR A3 R
AL - BB A LA REASEAM

B -

(a) $/L\\ﬂ%$wuﬁ Tﬁljﬁj
2B AN E EHEITR 5K

the following companies were related parties that
had transactions or balances with the Group:

Name of the related party

BEALER

Mr. CM Lau
2R A 5t A&

Cheer Crown Limited

ZBARRLA]

Cheer Crown Property Holdings
Limited

SEEMEZERER QA

Cheer Profit International
Enterprise Limited

EFNEREEFRAA]

Cheer Wealth International
Development Limited

ERBERERBR AT

East Ascent Enterprise Limited

RAGCEBRAF
Healthy World Investment Limited

REREARAR

Long Ascent Development Limited

RAAERBRAA

Sky Ease Holdings Limited
REERBR AT

Sam Woo Ship Building Limited

=FEM BB R A A

Redland Precast Concrete Products
Limited

RRERERLTERERRA A

Redland Precast Concrete Products
(China) Limited

PEEGERLER(PE)BARAF

tEA AR AL

Relationship with the Group
52 4 4 [ 19 B9 45

Director of the Company

KAREE

A related company beneficially wholly owned by
Mr. CM Lau

HERAEELEEREE N A QT

A related company beneficially wholly owned by
Mr. CM Lau

HERAEETEEREF N AT

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group and their family member

HAKEETEERARGEXNEZERB VAR QA

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group and their family member

HAEBETESFRAERGEKNELERBHNBE A A

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group and their family member

HAKREETEEREARGEXNEZEHB VA QA

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group

HAEBETESF2EHGNBE AT

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group

HAKBETESE2EHEGNHAE QT

A related company wholly owned by Mr. CM Lau

HERASLEETEHEAN AR

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group and their family member

HAKEETEEFREARGEXNEZERB VA QA

A related company wholly owned by Mr. CM Lau

HERASLEETEEAN A LR
A related company wholly owned by Mr. CM Lau

HERAEEDERENHE AR

2023FFHR | ZHBEE
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28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 28

(o)

Transactions

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the following
transactions were carried out with related parties
at terms mutually agreed by both parties:

Rental expenses paid to REAKBRTERN
related parties recognised in EHNEB¥ATHERX :
statement of comprehensive

income:
Rental expenses to Cheer Crown Xt FZEERRER A a
Property Holdings Limited MRS B X (4 a2iRvi)

(note i and vii)

Rental expenses to East Ascent XN FRAREFRAT
Enterprise Limited BB 2 B (A ik vi)
(note ii and vii)

Rental expenses to Cheer Profit Xt FERMBEIBRCEER QA
International Enterprise Limited — £98¢ 8 (§752i R vi)
(note ii and vii)

Rental expenses to Long Ascent S FRAZEAR AT
Development Limited BB B X (A ik vi)
(note ii and vii)

Rental expenses to Cheer Wealth ¥ FEHRBEEREEFRA A

International Development WM (f7 i kvi)
Limited (note ii and vii)

Rental expenses to Healthy S FREREER A
World Investment Limited BB B (A ik vi)

(note ii and vii)

BBMALRS (&)

(0)

¥

Z

VI

2

I

BRINERE SR H A B
FTHE B8 & A - 7 5% [ i R Bt
AT IR 5 1 R R FRHETT
UTRS :

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER TET

2,880 -

30 =

30 -

400 -

584 -

400 -




28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 28

(o)

Transactions (Continued)

Payments paid to related
parties under lease
liabilities:

Payments to Cheer Crown
Limited (note i)

Payments to Cheer Crown
Property Holdings Limited
(note i)

Payments to East Ascent
Enterprise Limited (note ii)

Payments to Cheer Profit

International Enterprise Limited

(note ii)
Payments to Long Ascent

Development Limited (note ii)

Payments to Cheer Wealth
International Development
Limited (note ii)

Payments to Healthy World
Investment Limited (note ii)

Expense paid/payable to
a related party:

Interest expense paid/payable to
Mr. CM Lau (note iii and vii)
Interest expense paid/payable

to Sam Woo Ship Building
Limited (note iv and vii)

Materials cost paid to Redland
Precast Concrete Products

(China) Limited (note v and
note vii)

Revenue received from
a related party:

Sales proceeds of plant and
equipment received from
Redland Precast Concrete
Products Limited
(note vi and vij)

(o)

HESBEETENEABAL

ME

X FRBERDANFE
(Hr&ti)
INTFEBMERRARAF
SRR (H132i)

INFRALEFRAA

W SRR (W&t
XNTFEMRBREEXERAF
SRR (i)

XHFERAZRRERDA

HO SRR (#izii)

XN TFERBERERERAF
HO SRR (Hatii)

XNTFREREFRAA
H) SR (A atii)

BN/ BABBALRX:

BN/ EAEIRAEEF ERAY
(B i fevii)

B/ ERAZMERBER AR
R B R L (fativRvi)

INFRREHERLER
(B AR A B ERA
(Bt ztvRvii)

REBBALKRA :

HERBFHBLRREL
EmBR A m R X
FER AT BB
(Bt stvikevii)

BBALRS (&

5 (&)
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TA&T
- 720
720 1,440
15 46
15 46
200 600
292 876
200 600
- 23
3,305 -
2,750 -
1 —_
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(o)

Transactions (Continued)

Note i:

Note ii:

Note iii:

Note iv:

Note v:

Rental for storage of machinery and
equipment are based on terms pursuant to
the tenancy agreements as mutually agreed
by the relevant parties.

Rental for directors’ quarters are based on
terms pursuant to the tenancy agreements
as mutually agreed by the relevant parties.

Interest expense was payable to a director,
Mr. CM Lau, in respect of the amount due
to a director.

Interest expense was payable to a related
company, Sam Woo Ship Building Limited,
in respect of the amount due to a related
company.

Materials cost was paid to a related
company, Redland Precast Concrete
Products (China) Limited.

28

BBALRS (&

b)) XRHHE)

Kiati -

Ht i -

K1 atiii <

Biativ -

Kiatv -

FAYE T IR R 3%
BOESVERE
B& 77 KR EH
R EO K

REEREEEMMA
EHERBEST
AR E R ELE

1REN o

MEFX TSR
—REFFRME
NEZZIRA L
o

MEFRTIBEN
—RIRBRE 2 R 3RIR
MmN B AR =
MERBKERA
o

MBI AT AN T
BAE DA R E RS
BB L (R B)
BRAF -
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Transactions (Continued)

Note vi: Sales of plant and equipment was received
from a related company, Redland Precast
Concrete Products Limited.

Note vii: ~ This relating party transaction also
constitutes continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, but its size is such that the
transaction was exempt from the disclosure
and shareholders’ approval requirements for
continuing connected transaction.

(c) Key management compensation

Key management includes directors
(executive and non-executive) of the Group.
The compensation paid or payable to key
management for employee services is disclosed
in note 31(a).

(d) Balance — non-trade

Payable to a director: EBif—REEFE

28

Mr. CM Lau (note 22) ¥R B 50 & (K1 at22)

Payable to a related FEAS — R BB A R FUIE -

company:

Sam Woo Ship Building Limited = F{&#: BB R A

(note 24) (Htit24)

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

Management consider that Silver Bright Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, is the ultimate holding company of the Group,
which is a company indirectly owned by a discretionary
trust, the beneficiary of which is Ms. Leung Lai So.

Al

29

BBMALRS (&)

/I/

b)) RHHE)

X

Biatvi:  HEHERKRRET
WER B B R E
B RBLRERE L EE m
BRAF -

Hiatvii 0 ZBERREALRS
iR T AR B 2
1AAENTEE 2T
BRAER S B
HR HEERE -
B AR
& B AR E 5
BREAERS -

© EEZEEAEHRM
TEEEABRBEASEE
= BT RIERTT) - BLER

RECNRENTERER
A B BB FES T () 3R -

d HEH—FES

2023 2022

HK$°000 HK$’'000

FTER TAET

- 30,000

100,000 -
RARERA T

‘&1 JE R ASilver Bright Holdings
Limited (— 8 7 I8 88 5 22 A & 7 i
BB AR RSB REER
AR ZATIHARBHZ T RZ
BANRRETERERESR -
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30 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 30 AXLARNEEEGBRRFEESD
OF THE COMPANY

(a) Balance sheet of the Company (a) AABMEEARBER
2023 2022
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B & FHET FET
Assets EE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RRMIEE 5,927 5,927
Current assets REEE
Prepayments SEENE O 81 92
Amount due from a subsidiary F’EHSZ BLEIEYNE]
I8 266,111 197,880
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBASEEY 31,422 606
Income tax recoverable A Yz 5 BT 15 AR 1 1
297,615 198,589
Total assets EE#E 303,542 204,516
Equity =
Capital and reserves EXRfEE
Share capital & A< 4,200 4,200
Reserves & 30(b) 199,325 200,290
Total equity A 203,525 204,490
Liabilities a8\
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Amount due to a related company J& {5 — 5 B8 B
NEIRIE 24, 28(d) 100,000 =
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables et IE R A
et 7 26
Total liabilities sEeE 0 100,017 26
Total equity and liabilities EnRkBEHEE 303,542 204,516
The balance sheet of the Company was approved AATHEEEGGEREDN2023F
by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2023 and 6 A3 EEE=HE - WAH 5
were signed on its behalf. ATRERZZ o
Lau Chun Ming Leung Lai So

2 4z B REF




30 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

At 31 March 2021
Profit for the year

At 31 March 2022
Loss for the year

At 31 March 2023

R20214E3A31H
FE R

202243 A31H
FEEE

M2023%3A31H

30 AAFANEERBRERFEREZDY

Other reserve of the Company represents the

(%)
(b) ARFMEEE
Retained
Earnings/
Share Other (Accumulated
premium reserve losses) Total
REEF,/
R 105 B HihRE  (REER) Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET FET FTET
194,087 5,927 267 200,281
- - 9 9
194,087 5,927 276 200,290
- - (965) (965)
194,087 5,927 (689) 199,325
2NN BB H A 4 48 P IR
=MBVNE B EFEBEAR

difference between the net asset value of SW

(BVI) acquired over the nominal value of the

share capital of the Company issued in exchange
thereof.

RERBBEBEERET
BRATERNZR °
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31

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(@)

Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of each director of the

Company is set out below:

Executive directors HrES

Mr. OM Lau® B)iRAA A
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok' RE S A
Mr. Lau Chun Ka URFEE
Ms. Leung Lai So REHLT

Independent non-executive BYFHTES
directors

Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Tt 2%
Roderick

Mr. Chu Tak Sum AEREE

Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Amold EXBRE

31 E=FEAREDR

(@)

EEH S
AAFEEEOHSH S
mF -

For the year ended 31 March 2023

BENNBFIANALEE

Employer’ s

contribution

Discretionary  Directors’  to pension
Fees Salaries bonus quarters scheme Total

Exm

Bihesty
ne ¢  BERL  EEEE  FUMER @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TiER TEn TEn TERL
- 863 - 643 - 1,506
- 910 - 600 - 1,510
- 910 - 600 - 1,510
- 494 - 324 - 818
264 - - - - 264
264 - - - - 264
264 - - - - 264
792 3,177 - 2,167 - 6,136




31 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 31 EEmEARER(E)

(Continued)
(a)  Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) E=FBe(#E)
For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE00FIANBILEE
Employer' s
contribution
Discretionary Directors”  to pension
Fees Salaries bonus quarters scheme Total
EXm
Rixesta
we ¢ BERL  ESEE  ELOLH &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TET TAT TAT TATL TR
Executive directors #rEE
Mr. CM Lauf AR L - 863 - 643 - 1,508
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok* ARE LA - 910 - 600 - 1,510
Mr. Lau Chun Ka BERLE - 910 - 600 - 1510
Ms. Leung Lai So PEHELL - 494 - 324 - 818

Independent non-executive BYFHTEES

directors
Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Tt 2%

Roderick 248 - - - - 248
Mr. Chu Tak Sum KEREE 248 - - - - 248
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Amold EXBmEs 248 - - - - 248

744 3177 — 2,167 — 6,088
u Chairman # TE

* Chief Executive Officer * T B




31

otes to the Consolidate

e I RAR MR

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(@)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration shown above represents
remuneration received from the Group by these
directors in their capacity as employees to the
Group and/or in their capacity as directors of the
companies now comprising the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 20283, none of
the directors of the Company (i) received or paid
any remuneration in respect of accepting office;
(i) received or paid emoluments in respect of
services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries
undertaking; or (i) waived or has agreed to waive
any emolument (2022: same).

Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive
any retirement benefits during the year ended 31
March 2023 (2022: same).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any

termination benefits during the year ended 31
March 20283 (2022: same).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 20283, no
consideration was paid by the company to third
parties for making available directors’ services
(2022: same).

31

E=wEARER(E)

EREAG- )

ERMEEZFESTER/AR
SEEER ABRBAKHE
BETEATNEERALHE
WA B & -

R E 20233318 IEF
ER - BMEXARES()®
2 S BEAT URER 38 3 A< 1 1)
(IR BEEEAAAK
HH B R R FTAESENR
U sk X (R B ¢ 3k
(P sk R B M E A S
(20224 : ¥R °

BERZRIRBEA

H ZE2023F3A31H ILFE
18 = = B UER sk A% Uk BR
E R R & F) (20224 : 48
&) o

EEZBBEN

B E2023F3H31 A L F &
BEE F O WER S B
R B B4R A (20224F : 48
) e

HREREERBMAE=T
X2 B

B £2023F3A31H L F
B AARNWERERES
R %5 0 1R (£ AT 88 = 75 2 A-H4X
B (2022%F : #8[R) °




31 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

©

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and controlled entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 March 2023, there
were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and controlled entities with
such directors (2022: same).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Other than those disclosed in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year (2022: same).

31 EEFEAMNRESE)

RAES EFEH X
BrEHERAXEANE
R BOUEREEMRZZH

# £2023%43A31H Lt F
B WEIVINEE -BF
THEEERESER A
SEANER BUBEREK
H R 5 % Bk (20224 : 48
@) o

EENXRS  ZTHHAOH
EAED

Bk &7 & B 75 R MY 5E28F
BEEI  RERKFAE
ERE - BEARRER—
FANBEARRBEETEER
MEEAEA R A EAE
BEBBERENEARS %
BER B #1774 (20224 : 1
@) e



ive Year Financial Summary

HFPBERE

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities
and equity of the Group for the last five financial years is as

follows.

Results

Revenue

Gross (loss)/profit

(Loss)/profit before
income tax

Income tax (expense)/
credit

(Loss)/profit for the year

Assets
Non-current assets
Current assets

Total assets
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity

Note:

The summary above does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

£

WA

(£18) /EH

BR P15 B A
(B1]R) @ F

Frig®t (),
g

FE (BR)

A

BE
FRBEE
MENEE
BE®RE

&E
FRBAE
mEAE

BEAE

ERERE

Year ended 31 March
HZE3A3IBHILEE

AEEREOABEPRFEND HIRRE
REE BEARERBANT -

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FAT FH T FAT FAIT
416,854 362,514 356,211 916,831 452,268
(737) (67,522) (4,058) 126,666 4,382
(31,010) (104,678) (36,838) 83,679 (567,497)
(445) 3,981 3,087 (10,661) 7,127
(31,455) (100,697) (33,751) 73,018 (50,370)
As at 31 March
M3A318
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FAT TAT FTAT FAT
576,523 564,370 582,223 586,788 595,180
394,907 239,836 351,146 456,582 262,754
971,430 804,206 933,369 1,043,370 857,934
204,754 57,875 60,719 69,613 59,5637
266,722 214,232 241,664 275,830 172,481
471,476 272,107 302,383 345,443 232,018
499,954 532,099 630,986 697,927 625,916
Bt -

7]

FABEES TR EEZT B RRE I
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